
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING
Monday, October 03, 2022 - 5:30 PM

City Hall Council Chambers - 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087

I. Call Public Mee1ng to Order

II. Execu1ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu1ve Session to discuss the following ma6er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen�ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

III. Adjourn Execu1ve Session

IV. Reconvene Public Mee1ng (6:00 P.M.)

V. Invoca1on and Pledge of Allegiance - Councilmember Moeller

VI. Open Forum

This is a �me for anyone to address the Council and public on any topic not already listed on the agenda or set for a
public hearing. Per Council policy, public comments should be limited to three minutes out of respect for other ci�zens'
�me. If you have a topic that warrants longer �me, please contact the City Secretary at kteague@rockwall.com to be
placed on the Agenda during the "Appointment Items" por�on of the mee�ng. This will allow your topic to be
provided sufficient �me for discussion and will permit proper no�ce to be given to the public. On topics raised during
Open Forum, please know Council is not permi(ed to respond to your comments during the mee�ng since the topic
has not been specifically listed on the agenda (the Texas Open Mee�ngs Act requires that topics of
discussion/delibera�on be posted on an agenda not less than 72 hours in advance of the Council mee�ng). This, in
part, is so that other citizens who may have the same concern may also be involved in the discussion.

VII. Take any Ac1on as a Result of Execu1ve Session

VIII. Consent Agenda

These agenda items are rou�ne/administra�ve in nature, have previously been discussed at a prior City Council
mee�ng, and/or they do not warrant Council delibera�on. If you would like to discuss one of these items, please let
the City Secretary know before the meeting starts so that you may speak during "Open Forum."

1. Consider approval of the minutes from the September 19, 2022 regular city council mee�ng, and
take any action necessary.

2. Z2022-039 - Consider a request by Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development on behalf of Sco,
Asbury of Rockwall Highgate LTD for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an
Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF-10) District and
Commercial (C) District land uses on a 264.510-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tracts 17-13 [50.0-
acres], 17-14 [26.452-acres], 17-15 [134.33-acres], 17-16 [43.6-acres], & 40-8 [8.79-acres] of the
W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural
(AG) District, located on the east side of SH-205 (S. Goliad Street) south of the intersec�on of SH-
205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

3. Z2022-041 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor
Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use
Permit (SUP) for a Golf Driving Range on an 7.955-acre tract of land being por�ons of a larger
18.131-acre tract of land and a 12.868-acre tract of land iden�fied as Tract 22 & 22-2 of the R.
Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C)
District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located near the terminus
of Fit Sport Life Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).

1



4. Z2022-042 - Consider a request by Bowen Hendrix of DuWest Realty, LLC for the approval of an
ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more with a Drive-
Through or Drive-In on an 8.684-acre por�on of a larger 36.428-acre tract of land iden�fied as
Tract 3 of the S. King Survey, Abstract No. 131, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, being
zoned Planned Development District 70 (PD-70) for limited General Retail (GR) District land uses,
situated within the North SH-205 Overlay (N. SH-205 OV) District, generally located at the
northeast corner of the intersec�on of E. Quail Run Road and N. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take
any action necessary (2nd Reading).

5. Z2022-043 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Ar�cle 09, Tree
Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02], and take any ac�on
necessary (2nd Reading).

6. P2022-050 - Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 &
2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall Addi�on being a 5.812-acre tract of land iden�fied as
Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail
(GR) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, located at the
southwest corner of the intersec�on of John King Boulevard and FM-1141, and take any ac�on
necessary.

7. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute contracts with Custard Construc�on Services for
facility improvements at City Hall in the amount of $77,232.47 and at the Municipal Service Center
in the amount of $399,490.56, to be funded out of the Internal Opera�ons Department Opera�ng
Budget, and take any action necessary.

8. Consider approval of a recommenda�on from the Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Subcommi,ee
regarding funding for the 2022 Pastor’s Conference in the amount of $5,500, including authorizing
the City Manager to execute associated funding arrangements, and take any action necessary.

9. Consider approval of a resolu�on denying Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC’s applica�on to
change rates within the City of Rockwall; approving coopera�on with the Steering Commi,ee of
Cities Served by Oncor to negotiate with Oncor on the City’s behalf, and take any action necessary.

10. Consider awarding a bid to Siddons-Mar�n Pierce for a new (Fire Department) Aerial Ladder Truck
in the amount of $1,701,000 and a new Brush Truck to Cavender Grande Ford in the amount of
$298,000, to be funded by General Fund Reserves, including authorizing the City Manager to
execute associated purchase order(s) for the trucks and related, loose equipment, and take any
action necessary.

11. Consider awarding bids to Caldwell Country Chevrolet and Rockdale Country Ford for the purchase
of model year 2023-24 vehicles for a total amount of $1,054,340, including authorizing the City
Manager to execute associated purchase orders, and take any action necessary.

12. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Coopera�ve Agreement between
the City of Rockwall and STAR Transit for transporta�on services for fiscal year 2023 in the amount
of $114,400 to be funded by the Administra�on Department Opera�ng Budget, and take any
action necessary.

13. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Meals on Wheels Senior
Services for certain nutri�onal and senior service programs for fiscal year 2023 in the amount of
$45,000 to be funded from the Administra�on Department Opera�ng Budget, and take any ac�on
necessary.

14. Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a grant agreement with the Texas Department
of Transporta�on Avia�on Division for par�cipa�on in the Rou�ne Airport Maintenance Program
(RAMP) at the Ralph M. Hall / Rockwall Municipal Airport, with matching funds for the grant to be
provided by the Airport Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.

IX. City Manager's Report, Departmental Reports and related discussions pertaining to current city
ac1vi1es, upcoming mee1ngs, future legisla1ve ac1vi1es, and other related ma6ers.

1. Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - August 2022
2. Fire Department Monthly Report - August 2022
3. Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - August 2022

2



4. Police Department Monthly Report - August 2022

5. Sales Tax Historical Comparison
6. Water Consumption Historical Statistics

X. Execu1ve Session.
The City of Rockwall City Council will Recess into Execu1ve Session to discuss the following ma6er
as authorized by Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code:

1. Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incen�ves pursuant to
Section 551.087 (Economic Development).

XI. Reconvene Public Mee1ng & Take Any Ac1on as Result of Execu1ve Session

XII. Adjournment

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available. Request for accommoda�ons or interpre�ve services
must be made 48 hours prior to this mee�ng. Please contact the City Secretary's Office at (972) 771-7700 or FAX (972) 771-7727 for
further information.

The City of Rockwall City Council reserves the right to adjourn into execu�ve session at any �me to discuss any of the ma,ers listed on
the agenda above, as authorized by Texas Government Code ¶ 551.071 (Consulta�on with A,orney) ¶ 551.072 (Delibera�ons about
Real Property) ¶ 551.074 (Personnel Matters) and ¶ 551.087 (Economic Development)

I, Kristy Teague, City Secretary for the City of Rockwall, Texas, do hereby cer�fy that this Agenda was posted at City Hall, in a place
readily accessible to the general public at all �mes, on the 30th day of Sept., 2022 at 4:00 p.m. and remained so posted for at least 72
continuous hours preceding the scheduled time of said meeting.

Kristy Teague, City Secretary
or Margaret Delaney, Asst. to the City Sect.

Date Removed

3



Page 1 of 16 

 

MINUTES  
ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING  

Monday, September 19, 2022 ‐ 5:00 PM  
City Hall Council Chambers ‐ 385 Goliad St., Rockwall, TX 75087  

I.  CALL PUBLIC MEETING TO ORDER      

Mayor Fowler called the public meeting to order at 5:00 p.m. Present were Mayor Kevin Fowler, Mayor Pro 
Tem Trace Johannesen, and City Council Members Clarence Jorif, Dana Macalik, Anna Campbell, Bennie 
Daniels, and Mark Moeller. Also present were City Manager Mary Smith, Assistant City Manager Joey Boyd 
and City Attorney Frank Garza. 
 
II. EXECUTIVE SESSION.     

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED BY 

CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

   
1.   Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant to Section, §551.074

(Personnel Matters). 
   

2.   Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or incentives pursuant to Section 551.087
(Economic Development). 

   
3.   Discussion regarding possible purchase of real property in  the vicinity of SH‐205, generally  located near Mims

Road, pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

III. ADJOURN EXECUTIVE SESSION  

Council adjourned from Ex. Session at 5:35 p.m. 
 
IV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING (6:00 P.M.)      

Mayor Fowler reconvened the public meeting at 6:00 p.m. 
 
V.  INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE ‐ COUNCILMEMBER DANIELS 

       

Councilmember Daniels delivered the invocation and led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 
VI. PROCLAMATIONS / AWARDS / RECOGNITIONS  

 
1.   Introduction of 2022‐2023 Youth Advisory Council (YAC) students 

The following YAC students were present and introduced themselves. 
 

Student’s Name Grade, School 

Jaxson Stuart Senior, RHS 

Maddoc Johnson Junior, RHS 

Emily Nielsen Junior, RHS 

Bethellen McReynolds Freshman, RHS 

Kaylen Pruitt Sophomore, RHS 

Miriam Gamez Junior, RHS 

Payton Larson Junior, RHS 

Contessa Barron Sophomore, RHS 

4



Page 2 of 16 

 

Morgan Crosby Senior, RHS 

Karmen Fumey-Nassah Senior, RHHS 

James Martinez Junior, RHHS 

Keaton Steen  Sophomore, RHHS 

     
 
2.   Constitution Week 

Mayor Fowler called forth several members of the local chapter of the Daughters of the American Revolution
(DAR)  organization.  Each  of  the  guests  went  on  to  introduce  themselves  and  briefly  tell  about  the
organization. Marilyn King, one of the DAR representatives in attendance, briefly recognized a few veterans,
including Police Chief Ed Fowler, Councilmember Clarence Jorif and Mayor Pro Tem Trace Johannesen. Mayor 
Fowler then read and presented the proclamation for “Constitution Week.” 
  
3.   Presentation of Life‐Saving Awards ‐ Rockwall Police Department 

 Officer Kristopher Adair ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Officer Clayton Lamb ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Officer Dylan Sparks ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Officer Mitchell Attaway ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Sergeant James Watson ‐ Life Saving Award 

Each officer was called forth and recognized for heroic acts they performed that resulted in saving human
lives while responding to emergency calls for service. 
 
4.   Presentation of Life‐Saving Awards ‐ Rockwall Fire Department 

Engine 01 'Shift' 

 Captain Rodney Caudle ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Driver Engineer Jacob Farrell ‐ Life Saving Award 
 Firefighter Garrett Green ‐ Life Saving Award 

Each officer was called forth and recognized for heroic acts they performed that resulted in saving human
lives while responding to emergency calls for service. 
 
VII.  OPEN FORUM 

 
Mayor Fowler explained how Open Forum is conducted, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak
at this time. There being no one indicating such, he then closed Open Forum. 
       
VIII. TAKE ANY ACTION AS A RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  

 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve a 380 agreement with Columbia Hospital for an acute care
hospital to be located in Rockwall. Councilmember Jorif seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of
those present (7 ayes to 0 nays). 
 
Regarding  the  city’s Animal Adoption Center/Shelter Advisory Board, Councilmember Moeller moved  to 
appoint Herman Hudson (replacing Steve Albers for a term through August of 2024). Councilmember Macalik 
seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of those present (7 ayes to 0 nays). 
 
IX. CONSENT AGENDA  

5



Page 3 of 16 

 

 
1.   Consider approval of the minutes from the September 6, 2022 regular city council meeting, and take any action

necessary. 
 
2.   Consider approval of a resolution affirming the city’s investment policy, and take an action necessary. 

 
3.   Consider  authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  an  Interlocal Agreement with  Rockwall  Independent  School

District  for School Resource Officer services  for school calendar year 2022‐2023, and  take any action necessary.
(Note: updated amount from ILA previously approved by Council on 08/15/22). 

 
4.   Consider  authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  professional  engineering  services  contract  with  Cardinal

Strategies  Engineering  Services,  LLP  to  perform  a  drainage  study  for  Bass  Road  in  an  amount  not  to  exceed
$31,600.00, to be funded out of the Engineering Consulting budget, and take any action necessary. 

 
5.   Consider  authorizing  the  City Manager  to  execute  a  professional  engineering  services  contract with  Birkhoff,

Hendricks, and Carter, L.L.P. to perform professional engineering for the Squabble Creek Wastewater Treatment
Plant Decommissioning Project in an amount not to exceed $45,100.00, to be funded out of the Water and Sewer
Fund, and take any action necessary. 

 
6.   Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an amendment to the current professional engineering services

contract with Birkhoff, Hendricks, and Carter, L.L.P. in the amount of $294,800.00 to expand the original scope and
design of the Little Buffalo Creek & Lake Rockwall Estates Sanitary Sewer contract, and take any action necessary. 

 
7.   Consider authorizing  the City Manager  to execute a professional engineering  services  contract with Freese and

Nichols to perform an evaluation of the Village Drive bridge in an amount not to exceed $89,110.00, to be funded
out of the Engineering Consulting budget, and take any action necessary. 

 
8.   P2022‐012 ‐ Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block A,

Arkoma Addition being a 2.90‐acre parcel of land being a portion of a larger 11.723‐acre tract of land identified as
Tract 5 of the S. King Survey, Abstract No. 131, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, Planned Development
District 65 (PD‐65) for Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses, addressed as 228, 302, & 306 W. Quail Run Road,
and take any action necessary. 

 
9.   P2022‐037 ‐ Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Larry Hance of R &

R Investments for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Quail Hollow Subdivision consisting of 250 single‐family
residential lots on a 85.63‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 2‐01, 2‐04, 2‐05 & 2‐06 of the P. B. Harrison Survey,
Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 96 (PD‐96) for Single‐
Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses, situated within the SH‐205 By‐Pass Overlay (SH‐205 BY OV) District, generally
located at  the southeast corner of  the  intersection of Hays Road and  John King Boulevard, and  take any action
necessary. 

 
10.  P2022‐039 ‐ Consider a request by Humberto Johnson, Jr. of the Skorburg Company on behalf of Larry Hance of R &

R  Investments  for the approval of a Master Plat  for the Quail Hollow Subdivision consisting of 250 single‐family
residential lots on a 85.63‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 2‐01, 2‐04, 2‐05 & 2‐06 of the P. B. Harrison Survey,
Abstract No. 97, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Planned Development District 96 (PD‐96) for Single‐
Family 10 (SF‐10) District land uses, situated within the SH‐205 By‐Pass Overlay (SH‐205 BY OV) District, generally
located at  the southeast corner of  the  intersection of Hays Road and  John King Boulevard, and  take any action
necessary. 

 
11.  P2022‐041 ‐ Consider a request by Wayne Terry of R‐Delta Engineers, Inc. on behalf of Stephen Geiger of Rayburn

Country Electric Cooperation for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for Lots 1‐4, Block A, REC Campus Addition being
a 99.849‐acre tract of land identified as a Lots 6‐9, Block 1, Rayburn Country Addition and Tract 3 of the W. H. Barnes
Survey, Abstract No. 26, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Heavy Commercial (HC) and Commercial
(C)  District,  situated within  the  SH‐205  Overlay  (SH‐205  OV)  District,  located  at  the  northwest  corner  of  the
intersection of S. Goliad Street [SH‐205] and Mims Road, and take any action necessary. 

 
12.  P2022‐042 ‐ Consider a request by Meredith Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Peter H. Shaddock, Jr.

of SH Dev Klutts Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Preliminary Plat for the Homestead Subdivision being a 196.009‐
acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 92 (PD‐92), generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection
of FM‐549 and FM‐1139, and take any action necessary. 

6



Page 4 of 16 

 

 
13.  P2022‐043 ‐ Consider a request by Meredith Joyce of Michael Joyce Properties on behalf of Peter H. Shaddock, Jr.

of SH Dev Klutts Rockwall, LLC for the approval of a Master Plat  for the Homestead Subdivision being a 196.009‐
acre tract of land identified as Tract 6 of the J. A. Ramsey Survey, Abstract No. 186, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County,
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 92 (PD‐92), generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection
of FM‐549 and FM‐1139, and take any action necessary. 

  Mayor Fowler removed item #3 for further discussion.  Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen then moved to approve
the remaining Consent Agenda Items (#s 1, 2, 4, 5, 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11, 12 and 13), as presented. Councilmember
Campbell seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of those present (7 ayes to 0 nays). 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve Consent Agenda item #3. Councilmember Moeller seconded the
motion, which passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 abstention (Campbell). 
 
X. APPOINTMENT ITEMS  

 
1.   Appointment with Lorna and Mark Kipphut to hear  information on the "D Day for V Day" program, a  joint effort

between the Terry Fisher American Legion Post 117 and Dr. Stan Lowrance (local dentist) to provide dental services
to any local veteran, and take any action necessary. 
 

Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen spoke during this  item,  indicating that he  is a part of the  local chapter of the
American Legion, The Terry Fisher Post. He went on  to share details about  this event, as  follows:    It  is a
program called “Dental Day for Veteran’s Day” or “D Day for V Day,” and it was spearheaded by local dentist,
Dr. Stan Lowrance as a way to give back to the community, specifically veterans who have served. It began
in 2017 but was not held in 2020 due to COVID. He explained that the VA only offers dental care for veterans
who meet  their  service  connected  disability, which  leaves many  veterans without  dental  care.  So,  Dr.
Lowrance saw this as a way of thanking veterans for guaranteeing his freedom. Many veterans cannot afford 
dental care, and the goal of the American Legion is to enhance the well‐being of America’s veterans, their
families, our military, and our communities by our devotion to mutual helpfulness. The American Legion’s
vision statement is “The American Legion: Veterans Strengthening America.” 
Since 2017, Dr. Lowrance’s program has seen several hundred patients, and the goal for 2022 is to see 100
patients in a single day, which would beat the previous record of around 90.  This year’s D Day for V Day will
be on 11/11/22 all day (8 AM – 4 PM). There will be teams of dentists and technicians on hand to serve,
providing free treatment consisting of an exam, followed by a cleaning or “front line procedure” (extractions
or fillings).  Appointments opened on 09/13/22, and interested veteran’s may call 520‐609‐4145 to schedule 
an appointment. 
  
2.   Appointment with Planning & Zoning Commission representative to discuss and answer any questions regarding

planning‐related cases on the agenda. 
 

Sedric  Thomas,  Chairman  of  the  city’s  P&Z  Commission  came  forth  and  briefed  the  Council  on
recommendations of the Commission regarding planning‐related items on tonight’s agenda. The Council took
no action following Mr. Thomas’ comments. 
 
XI. PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS  

 
1.   Z2022‐039 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development

on behalf of Scott Asbury of Rockwall Highgate LTD for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an
Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF‐10) District and Commercial (C)
District land uses on a 264.510‐acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17‐13 [50.0‐acres], 17‐14 [26.452‐acres], 17‐15
[134.33‐acres], 17‐16 [43.6‐acres], & 40‐8 [8.79‐acres] of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall,
Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, located on the east side of SH‐205 (S. Goliad Street) south
of the intersection of SH‐205 and FM‐549, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

7



Page 5 of 16 

 

 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background  information related to this agenda  item. The concept 
plan shows that the 264.51‐acre subject property will incorporate commercial and residential land uses. This 
includes  28.40‐acres  of  land  dedicated  to  limited  Commercial  (C)  District  land  uses  and  236.11‐acres 
consisting of 384 residential lots, a public park, and open space. The proposed 384 single‐family residential 
lots will consist of five (5) lot types: [1] 43 Type ‘A’ lots that are a minimum of 130’ x 240’, [2] 26 Type ‘B’ lots
that are a minimum of 110’ x 190’, [3] 66 Type ‘C’ lots that are a minimum of 80’ x 115’, [4] 43 Type ‘D’ lots
that are a minimum of 80’ x 110’, and [5] 206 Type ‘E’ lots that are a minimum of 62’ x 110’. Staff should note
that  the proposed 384‐lots  represent a 106‐lot  reduction  from  the concept plan proposed with Case No. 
Z2022‐028,  this  translates  to  a  gross  density  of  1.45  dwelling  units  per  acre  for  the  total  proposed 
development (i.e. 1.63 dwelling units per acre less the 28.40‐acre tract of land designated for commercial).
The minimum dwelling unit size (i.e. air‐condition space) will range from 2,200 SF to 3,800 SF. With regard to
the  proposed  housing  product,  staff  has  incorporated  anti‐monotony  and masonry  standards  into  the
proposed Planned Development District ordinance. Specifically, the ordinance will require a minimum of 90%
masonry  (with a minimum of 85% masonry on each  façade), and be subject  to  the City’s upgraded anti‐
monotony standards; however, the Planned Development District ordinance will also incorporate provisions 
that allow up to 80% cementitious fiberboard utilized in a horizontal lap‐siding, board‐and‐batten siding, or
decorative  pattern  to  allow  a  more  Traditional  Neighborhood  Design  product  (also  referred  to  as
Gingerbread).  The  proposed  subdivision will  be  subject  to  the  land  uses  and  density  and  dimensional
requirements stipulated for properties within a Single‐Family 10 (SF‐10) District unless otherwise specified in
the Planned Development District ordinance. The subject property is generally located between FM‐549, SH‐
205 (S. Goliad Street), Travis Lane, and Wylie Lane. The proposed concept plan shows that the development
will consist of 25.40‐acres of private open space, a 1.30‐acre amenity center, and a 11.60‐acre public park. 
 
Forty‐one notices were sent out by staff to property owners and residents located within 500’ of the subject
property. In addition, the one nearby homeowner’s association was notified.  One notification was received
back in favor, one email was received in favor, and 10 notifications were received in opposition. Because of
the number of opposing notifications  received  (over 20%  from within 200’ of  the  subject property), any 
approval of this request by Council will require a ¾ majority vote  in order for  it to actually pass. The P&Z 
Commission did previously review this case and has recommended approval of the zoning change by a vote
of 6 to 0 (with Commissioner Welch being absent). 
 
Mayor Fowler then called forth the applicant, Larry Corson, to speak. Mr. Corson then briefed Council on past
history associated with  this proposed,  residential subdivision. He went on  to give a slide presentation  to
Council, providing more in‐depth information on what he is now proposing associated with this residential
subdivision development. 
 
Mayor Fowler dismissed the YAC students from the meeting at this point. 
 
Mayor Fowler then opened the Public Hearing, asking that speakers please limit their comments to three (3)
three minutes. 
 
Joan Haddock 
155 Willowcrest 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mrs. Haddock came forth and shared that she and her husband live directly across the road from where this
residential development is proposed to be built. They both are strongly opposed to this development since
they believe the density  is too high and the  lots are too small. Furthermore, they believe that the way  in

8



Page 6 of 16 

 

which the city current calculates density is flawed and needs to be changed in order to better manage growth. 
She urged the Council to deny this request. 
 
Dale and Bretta Price 
453 Cullins Road 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Price came forth and shared that they live just to the southwest of this property, and they are 
opposed to approval of this proposed subdivision. Mr. Price indicated that one reason they are opposed to
this development  is because of  run‐off and drainage‐related concerns. On  their own property,  they have
about two acres that are unusable because they constantly stay wet and never dry out, even in the summer.
Mrs. Price shared that she has concerns about the SF‐10 designation, as she wonders what will happen if it
turns out that the developer ends up not being able to financially afford to do this. She believes that it could 
end up that homes will be allowed to be built on 10,000 square foot lots, and that is why she has an issue
with this. 
 
Cody Barrick 
5459 S. FM‐549 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Barrick came forth and expressed that he and his wife live on 12.5 acres adjacent to this property, and
their property is utilized for equestrian activities. He went on to share that he has density‐related concerns, 
especially  relative  to  the  existing,  surrounding  area.  He  appreciates  the  city  council  and  developer
encouraging and participating in negotiations with surrounding land owners. He is happy to see the proposed
trees and berms, and he appreciates a cul‐de‐sac being incorporated over near his property. He would also
like to see one additional cul‐de‐sac added back into the plan. 
 
Susan Langdon 
5050 Bear Claw Lane 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Ms. Langdon came forth and thanked Council, expressing that she recognizes Council will need to make a
decision this evening, and she knows that not everyone will be happy with whatever decision is made. She 
stated  that  the city’s “Consent Agenda”  this evening collectively had 740 new households on  it, and  this
particular property has 384 new ones. She acknowledges that a lot of new development is going on within
the city. She hopes the Council will support neighbors who want to see  larger half and one acre  lots. She
generally expressed gratitude for the developer working with the existing, surrounding land / homeowners
to come to an agreeable compromise. She is in support of this request at this time and will appreciate seeing
less ‘postage stamp’ type homes and developments in the future. 
 
Tim McCallum 
5140 Standing Oak 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. McCallum came forth and shared that he is a former city council member, and he is the current President 
of the Oaks of Buffalo Way subdivision. Mr. McCallum shared that the city previously annexed this property
so that it could have input regarding what would end up being developed on this land. Mr. McCallum shared
that  the  developer’s  original  proposal was  generally  not  acceptable  to  the  surrounding  neighbors.  The
developer then went back and worked with the community/the neighbors, and he re‐worked the plan and 
what he was proposing. What resulted is notably lower density – less homes, on larger lots, with larger home 

9



Page 7 of 16 

 

sizes. He believes that what is being proposed now is much more in‐line with existing, surrounding residential
homes. He then made comments about the proposed lot sizes, configuration of the proposed lots, and the
location of the proposed cul‐de‐sacs. He believes that this proposal is likely the best that the neighbors will
ever get on this particular piece of property. They started out with a proposal for more than 700 homes, and
this current proposal is for less than 400 homes. He thanked the developer for working with the neighbors,
revising his plan, and putting forth a proposal that is much better for everyone.  
 
Mr. Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX  
 
Mr. Wacker shared that the previous developer had asked him to take his drone and a photo stick and take 
photos of  the effect of a berm. He  indicated  that berms are  really effective and can  really work well  for
properties. 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth and speak, Mayor Fowler then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Councilmember Jorif asked for clarification on why the developer was originally asked by staff to remove the
proposed cul‐de‐sacs. Mr. Miller went on to share numerous reasons why the city has generally moved away
from incorporating cul‐de‐sacs into residential developments. Jorif asked who is footing the bill related to
construction of water and sewer  infrastructure. The applicant  indicated that he  (the developer)  is paying
those costs. Jorif acknowledged that the estimated completion of TXDOT’s SH‐205 roadway improvements 
will coincide well with the estimated timeline associated with when the homes will actually be built. 
 
Councilmember Daniels asked for the city’s current standards to be honored as far as ‘density’ is concerned.
Mr. Miller went on to share that the applicant is meeting those standards, and the density does conform to
the city’s 2040 Comprehensive Development Plan. Mr. Miller explained what a “Planned Development”  is
and  how  it  stipulates  the minimum  lot  sizes  and  how  those  are  tied  to  the  developer’s  concept  plan, 
indicating that the developer can always built larger lots/larger homes, but he cannot ever build smaller ones.
Councilmember Daniels shared that he understands the surrounding neighbors want as much open space as
possible and that there is a lot of opposition. He pointed out that the developer started out proposing many
more homes, and they are now proposing under 400 homes. He encouraged those in opposition to look into
the future and consider what else neighbors could possibly end up with if a different developer perhaps came
in and was not willing to work with surrounding property owners to compromise and put forth a proposal
that can be mutually agreed upon. 
 
Mayor Fowler asked how the city ‘ties down’ a developer’s proposal to ensure that a concept plan is adhered
to, regardless of if the property sells and changes hands from this developer to a different one.  Mr. Miller
went on to share how a concept plan that Council approves stays in place, regardless of if the property sells 
or if the owner changes his mind and really wants to build something that varies from what Council approves.
He shared that it is called a ‘concept plan’ because ‘engineering work’ has not yet been done on it; however,
it does ‘tie down’ the number, size, and configuration of the lots. Sometimes, after engineering work is done,
a developer actually ends up losing lots because they find out it does not work, but they do not gain any lots.
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen shared that many of the concerns he read in emails seem to have been discussed
and addressed  this evening. Regarding  the  topic of  schools,  the  school district estimates  .4  students per
rooftop. The city is limited in what it can do related to the roadways and associated traffic concerns, as it is
a  TXDOT  roadway;  however,  it  sounds  like  the  TXDOT  timeline  associated  with  adjacent  roadway
improvements (FM‐549 and SH‐205) coincides well with the developer’s timeline. Indication was given that
the developer will not be allowed to increase the drainage off of their site or change the drainage patterns.  

10



Page 8 of 16 

 

 
Councilmember Moeller commented that he appreciates everything the developer has done to work with
the  neighbors  and  improve  upon what  he  originally  brought  forth. Moeller went  on  to  share  that  he
personally has concerns about the number of small lots being proposed, even still. He wonders if it is possible
to reconfigure the lots in order to further increase lot sizes on some of the smaller ones. Moeller is concerned 
that, even though the city’s anti‐monotony standards will try and ensure that the look and feel of the homes
varies,  there still may be some monotony.   He believes  that having more anti‐monotony on  the  lot sizes
themselves will enhance the neighborhood. The developer briefly addressed his efforts to  incorporate as
much variety as possible. 
 
Councilmember Macalik commended the developer for listening to the neighbor’s concerns and taking their
concerns  into  consideration.  She  understands  not  everyone will  be  happy with  the  decision made  this
evening; however, as a whole, the City of Rockwall is going to ‘win’ with a development like this. She thanked
the developer for addressing the density situation, and she believes that a high‐quality product will result. 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen moved to approve Z2022‐039.   Councilmember Daniels seconded the motion.
The ordinance caption was then read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE 
ZONING FROM AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED 
DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT XX (PD-XX) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT 
AND COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT PROPERTY, 
BEING A 264.510-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACTS 17-13, 17-14, 
17-15, 17-16 & 40-8 OF THE W. W. FORD SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED 
HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays 
  
2.   Z2022‐040 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Monica Hernandez and Richard Crossley for

the  approval  of  an  ordinance  for  a Specific Use  Permit  (SUP)  for  a Guest Quarters/Secondary  Living Unit  and
Detached Garage on a 1.4945‐acre parcel of land identified as Lot 2, Block A, Oaks of Buffalo Way Addition, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Single‐Family Estate 1.5 (SFE‐1.5) District, addressed as 2175 Arrowhead
Court, and take any action necessary (1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information related to this agenda item.  The applicant’s 
home is located within the Oaks of Buffalo Way subdivision. He would like to construct a 4,230 square foot
detached garage/guest quarters that consists of 3,480 sq. feet of enclosed space and about 750 square feet
of outdoor living space. He generally explained that the size of the proposal exceeds the city’s current limits
by 2,790 square feet. So its approval will require that the Council approve a Specific Use Permit. He went on 
to point out that the original drawings for this case  included not only a  living area but also a kitchen and
bathroom. So staff requested an updated floor plan removing the kitchen, but the applicant has not provided
that so far. Staff found only two structures of this kind within the subdivision that are  in excess of 1,000
square feet with the largest being 1,886 square feet (which is right next door to this applicant’s property).

11



Page 9 of 16 

 

The city’s Planning & Zoning Commission did unanimously recommend denial of this case. So, any approval
of this case by the City Council this evening will require a ¾, super majority vote of Council in order for it to 
be approved (6 of the 7 council members must vote in favor). Nineteen notices were sent out to property 
owners /  residents within 500’ of  the  subject property. Three were  received back  in  favor, and one was
received back in opposition. In addition, the one HOA was also notified. 
 
Mayor Fowler called for the applicant, Monica Hernandez. Ms. Hernandez shared that she  is speaking on 
behalf of the applicant, who is willing to remove the kitchen area. She explained he wants to construct this 
structure in order to house his various cars (essentially it will be utilized as a garage, not as a ‘secondary living
quarters’). 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak. The owner
then came forth and provided comments to Council regarding his proposed, detached garage. He stated that 
there are other, existing homes in the neighborhood who also have large, detached structures that actually
do have dwelling units inside of them. He understands that what he is proposing is large, but a good deal of 
the square footage is for a grilling area. He prefers to not remove the grilling area. His neighbor’s structure is 
about 2,000 square feet, and it has a bathroom in it. His neighbor does not utilize his for a ‘dwelling unit’ – it 
actually only contains cars too. 
 
Mayor Fowler asked if anyone wants to speak during this public hearing. 
 
Jack Livingston 
2235 Arrowhead Court 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Livingston came forth and shared that he  is the next door neighbor of the applicant, and he has a 2k 
square foot garage that actually has a bathroom in it. He uses it for a garage also, and he is in favor of Council 
approving this request this evening, as he believes it is good for the neighborhood and will help the values. 
 
Councilmember  Jorif  asked  for  clarification  regarding  the  size  of  the  proposed  structure  and  how  that
compares  to what  the  city’s  standards  allow  as  far  as  detached  garages/secondary  living  quarters  are
concerned. Mr. Miller answered those questions. 
 
The applicant came forth again and shared that he  is willing to remove the proposed bathroom. Also, the
HOA that oversees his subdivision did approve this proposed structure last December. He went on to show 
the  Council  an  updated  drawing  that  shows  a  proposal with  the  bathroom  having  been  removed.    The 
applicant reiterated that there are many ‘secondary structures’ in existence within this same subdivision that
are also extremely large, and he has come with photos and address information of those other structures 
too. 
 
General  discussion  ensued  pertaining  to  the  proposed  size  of  the  structure,  including  other  existing 
‘secondary’ structures in existence within the neighborhood. Councilmember Campbell asked for clarification
on the research staff has done related to other, existing secondary structures. Mr. Miller shared that staff
found two accessory structures  larger than 1,000 square feet – one of which  is  located on the neighbor’s
property. Mr. Miller went on to share that this subdivision used to be located outside of the city limits, but
it was subsequently annexed. So, prior to annexation, it was not subject to city requirements. The applicant
reiterated that he really desires to have this garage approved, and he cannot make it any smaller because
then it would not fit all of his cars. 
 

12



Page 10 of 16 

 

Following the additional discussion, Councilmember Jorif moved to deny Z2022‐040. Councilmember Macalik
seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 6 ayes with 1 against (Campbell). 
  
3.   Z2022‐041 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc.

on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA‐Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific
Use Permit (SUP) for a Golf Driving Range on an 7.955‐acre tract of land being portions of a larger 18.131‐acre tract
of land and a 12.868‐acre tract of land identified as Tract 22 & 22‐2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of
Rockwall, Rockwall County,  Texas,  zoned Commercial  (C) District,  situated within  the  IH‐30 Overlay  (IH‐30 OV)
District, generally located near the terminus of Fit Sport Life Boulevard, and take any action necessary (1st Reading).

Planning Director Ryan Miller provided background information related to this agenda item. The applicant is
seeking approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Golf Driving Range on an 7.955‐acre tract of land being 
portions of a larger 18.131‐acre tract of land and a 12.868‐acre tract of land. The applicant’s proposal includes
construction  of  an  ~74,500  SF,  three‐story  entertainment  venue  that will  consist  of  Commercial  Indoor 
Amusement, Restaurants, Banquet Facility/Event Hall, and a Golf Driving Range. He went on to explain that 
notices were sent out to 12 property owners and residents located within 500’ of the property. The city has
not received any notice replies in return. The Planning & Zoning Commission did recommend approval of this
SUP by a vote of 6 to 0 (Welch having been absent). 
 
Mayor Fowler called fort the applicant. 
 
Renee Ward of Weir & Associates 
2201 E. Lamar Blvd. 
Arlington, TX 
 
Ms. Ward indicated she is the civil engineer assigned to this project. 
 
Tony Winkler 
637 Calvin Drive 
Heath, TX 
 
Mr. Winkler shared that he is the owner. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak; however, no
one indicated such, so he closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor  Pro  Tem  Johannesen  then moved  to  approve  Z2022‐041.  Councilmember Macalik  seconded  the
motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-XXX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO 
GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR A GOLF DRIVING 
RANGE ON A 7.955-ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF A LARGER 
18.13-ACRE TRACT OF LAND AND A 12.868-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED 
AS TRACT 22 & 22-2 OF THE R. IRVINE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO 120, CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING 

13



Page 11 of 16 

 

FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  
4.   Z2022‐042 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider a request by Bowen Hendrix of DuWest Realty, LLC for the

approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more with a Drive‐Through
or Drive‐In on an 8.684‐acre portion of a larger 36.428‐acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the S. King Survey,
Abstract No. 131, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, being zoned Planned Development District 70 (PD‐70)
for limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the North SH‐205 Overlay (N. SH‐205 OV) District,
generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection of E. Quail Run Road and N. Goliad Street [SH‐205], and
take any action necessary (1st Reading). 
 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background information related to this agenda item.  This is located 
near the northeast intersection of SH‐205 and Quail Run next to the existing CVS. This is part of a mixed use 
Planned Development District that allows  for  limited General Retail District  land uses. Back  in January of
2022, the applicant had come forth with a PD Development Plan showing how this property would lay out.
They were proposing two 10,000 sq. foot restaurant/retail buildings, one 5,400 square foot retail building 
and one 4,000 square foot drive‐thru restaurant. The applicant is now asking for an SUP to establish a 2,325
square foot restaurant with drive‐thru. He went on to explain stipulations associated with this proposed land
use,  according  to  the  city’s  Unified  Development  Code.  (1)  drive‐thru  lane  cannot  have  access  from  a
residential street; (2) additional screening is required next to the drive‐thru lane, and (3) a minimum stacking
of 6 vehicles is required. The applicant’s concept plan does conform to these requirements. Mr. Miller went
on to share that this site is located more than 580’ from the closest residential to the north and more than
1,000’ from the closest residential to the east. The City’s Planning & Zoning Commission has recommended 
approval of this request by a vote of 6‐0 (Welch was absent). Approval of this SUP is discretionary on the part
of Council. In addition, staff sent out seventy‐four notifications to property owners located within 500’ of the
subject property. Staff received twelve notices back in opposition and one back in favor. In addition, several
nearby HOAs were also notified. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing. The applicant was invited to come forth but did not do so, indicating
he will answer any questions should they arise. 
 
Michael Podina 
802 York 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Podina shared that he is one of the property owners located within 500’ of this proposal. He has concerns
about trash that may end up in one of the two nearby ponds, as a lot of trash is already generated from the
existing, nearby Kroger. He is also concerned about the increase in traffic that will likely occur. He suspects
this restaurant may end up being a Chipotle. He does not consider that to be ‘high quality,’ and for these
reasons he is opposed to this request being approved. 
 
Mr. Bob Wacker 
309 Featherstone 
Rockwall, TX 
 
Mr. Wacker came forth and commented on past flood plain studies that have been done on this property. He
would like to see a final flood plan study conducted and approved on this piece of property. He went on to
comment on the existing two‐lane road, indicating that this intersection is horrible. He wants a traffic study

14



Page 12 of 16 

 

to be done by TXDOT, especially because the more development that occurs in this area, the more traffic will 
result. He is waiting for an answer from TXDOT on if they are willing to conduct a traffic study on this area or
not. He believes that existing roadways, including Quail Run, are totally inadequate to accommodate this and
other developments. 
 
The applicant then came forth and addressed the Council. 
 
There being no one else wishing to come forth, Mayor Fowler closed the public hearing. 
 
Bowen Hendrix 
4403 North Central Expressway 
Dallas, TX 
 
The applicant spoke about the various concerns that speakers expressed this evening, including committing
to stay on top of cleaning up any trash on a regular basis, even weekly if necessary. The retention ponds are
HOA property, so they cannot maintain those. Related to traffic, he hopes that TXDOT will address those 
concerns as soon as possible. The size of the restaurant, which  is proposed to be a Chipotle,  is nicer than
some other restaurants, and the traffic that will be generated is less than, say, the Chick‐fil‐A nearby. 
 
Following his brief comments, Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen asked staff to comment on the floodplain study.
Ms. Williams, City Engineer, provided clarification – sharing that the flood study cannot be approved until
the grading plan has been submitted and approved. The applicant shared that he hopes to have that grading
plan submitted to the city for approval sometime this week. 
 
Mayor Fowler wonders whether or not a restaurant goes in, and – as a result – it generates additional traffic;
or, if a restaurant decides to go in because of the traffic that is already in existence. 
 
Some additional, brief comments transpired related to the floodplain study that will be forthcoming. 
 
Councilmember Daniels then moved to approve Z2022‐042. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion.
The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-2XX 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 70 (PD-70) [ORDINANCE NO. 19-
41] AND THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY 
AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR ONE (1) 
RESTAURANT WITH 2,000 SF OR MORE WITH DRIVE-THROUGH OR DRIVE-IN ON 
A 8.684-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 3-10 OF THE S. KING 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 131, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY DESCRIBED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ 
AND DEPICTED IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL 
CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR 
A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING 
FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 

15



Page 13 of 16 

 

  
5.   Z2022‐043 ‐ Hold a public hearing to discuss and consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Article

09, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20‐02], and take any action necessary
(1st Reading). 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided brief, introductory comments pertaining to this agenda item.  Public 
notice on this case was given, as required by law. In addition, the city’s P&Z Commission did review this, and
they recommended approval by a vote of 6‐0. He then deferred to the city’s Parks Director, Travis Sales, to
speak in greater detail about this agenda item. Mr. Sales expressed that these changes will make it a much
better ordinance. Hackberry trees will no longer be protected. Eastern Red Cedars will be clarified for “cedar
trees.” In addition, 8’ tall and greater cedars will be protected moving forward (instead of 11’ caliper trees or 
greater being protected). Also, the replacement will be one, 4” caliper tree for every eight‐foot tall cedar. In 
addition, tree surveys will be conducted by a landscape architect, an ISA certified arborist, or a horticulturist. 
Related to utility clearance pruning, the city will be able to rank those as a ‘non protected’ tree, depending
on what’s left after a pruning cycle. Tree surveys are being updated to also require species, caliper inch and 
a ‘health rating’ to be specified. Pruning standards are also being specified, as well as nursery stock standards.
These changes will add some additional staff time for the Parks Director when doing plan reviews, but it will
result in a much better document for both the city and developers. 
 
Mayor Fowler opened the public hearing, asking if anyone would like to come forth and speak at this time.
There being no one indicating such, he then closed the Public Hearing. 
 
Mayor Fowler made a motion to approve Z2022‐043. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The
ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-XX 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF 
THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY AMENDING 
ARTICLE 09, TREE PRESERVATION, AS DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS 
ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM 
OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING 
FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 
XII.  ACTION ITEMS 
 
1.   P2022‐040 ‐ Discuss and consider a request by Harold Fetty of HD Fetty Land Surveyor, LLC on behalf of Felipe Garcia

for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1, 2, & 3, Block A, Garcia‐Herrera Addition being a 11.13‐acre tract of land
identified as Tract 8‐02 of the Johnson Survey, Abstract No. 129, Rockwall County, Texas, situated within the City of
Rockwall’s Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ), addressed as 675 Linda Lane, and take any action necessary. 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller, provided background information related to this agenda item. The applicant 
is requesting the approval of a Final Plat of an 11.13‐acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 8‐02 of the Johnson Survey,
Abstract No. 129) for the purpose of creating three (3) lots (i.e. Lots 1‐3, Block A, Garcia‐Herrera Addition). 
The applicant is also requesting an exception under Subsection D, Exception Requests, of Exhibit ‘A’ of the
Interim  Interlocal Agreement By and Between  the City of Rockwall and Rockwall County. Staff  sent  this 
proposal  to Rockwall County  for  comment, and – at  that  time –  the applicant was proposing 103.76’ of
frontage, and the County was opposed to the 103’. So, the applicant increased the frontage to 130’.  Staff has

16



Page 14 of 16 

 

sent the revised proposal to the County; however, a response has not yet been received. Due to the ‘shot
clock,’ though, the city is having to bring this forth at this time for consideration. 
 
According to Subsection C.2, Minimum Lot Frontage on a Street, of the agreement, the minimum lot frontage
for a lot that is greater than one (1) acre but less than three (3) acres is 150‐feet. In this case, Lot 2 originally
showed 103.76‐feet of frontage, which is 46.24‐feet less than the requirement. Staff contacted the applicant, 
and the applicant stated that they cannot increase the size of the lot greater than 130‐feet due to the existing 
layout of the buildings; however, the applicant stated that he would revise the plat to show 130‐feet. This 
would still be 20‐feet less than the requirement. Staff has not received these revisions depicting this change,
but has made this a conditional of approval in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo. Staff
should note that the requested exception does not meet the Administrative Exemptions requirements of
Subsection D.1  and must  be  approved  by  the  City  Council  per  Subsection D.2,  of  the  Interim  Interlocal
Agreement By and Between the City of Rockwall and Rockwall County. Staff should also point out that the
three lots directly across the street from this property are 100’ in width. So this will be 30’ larger. Approval
of these requests and associated variances are discretionary on the part of Council. On September 13, 2022, 
the  Planning  and  Zoning  Commission  did  recommend  approval  of  this  Final  Plat  by  a  vote  of  6‐0, with
Commissioner Welch being absent. 
 
Councilmember Macalik  then moved  to  approve  P2022‐040. Councilmember  Jorif  seconded  the motion,
which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  
2.   SP2022‐044 ‐ Discuss and consider a request by Bob Pruett of Urban Structure on behalf of Garrett Poindexter

of Cambridge Properties,  LLC  for  the approval of an Exception to  the building height  in conjunction with an
approved site plan for a Mini‐Warehouse Facility on a 3.682‐acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.154‐
acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the J. M. Allen Survey, Abstract No. 2, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, 
Texas, zoned Planned Development District 10 (PD‐10) for Commercial (C) District land uses, situated within the
SH‐205 By‐Pass Overlay (SH‐205 BY‐OV) District and the SH‐276 Overlay (SH‐276 OV) District, situated at the
southeast  corner of  the  intersection of  John King Boulevard  and Discovery Boulevard,  and  take  any  action
necessary. 

Planning Director, Ryan Miller provided background  information on  this agenda  item. The applicant, Bob 
Pruett of Urban Structure, is requesting the approval of an exception for a three (3) story storage facility on
a 3.682‐acre tract of land being a portion of a larger 7.154‐acre tract of land situated at the southeast corner
of the intersection of John King Boulevard and Discovery Boulevard. The applicant’s Site Plan and Building
Elevations indicate that Building A will be three (3) stories and 42‐feet in height. On September 13, 2022, the
Planning  and  Zoning  Commission  approved  the  exception  along with  the  Site  Plan,  and  recommended 
approval of the exception to Building Height in the Conditional Land Use Standards, by a vote of 6‐0, (with 
Commissioner Welch absent). Requests for exceptions are discretionary decisions for both the Planning and
Zoning Commission and City Council. Staff should note that a supermajority vote (e.g. six [6] out of the seven
[7] council members) ‐‐ with a minimum of four (4) votes in the affirmative ‐‐ is required for the approval of
this exception. 
 
Mayor Fowler asked staff to move forward with a text amendment that will allow things like this to be heard
and approved administratively by the P&Z Commission. However, he understands that Council will still need
to approve the building height exception this evening. 
 
Mr. Miller answered questions of Councilmember Jorif related to what the adjacent properties are zoned as
and what exists on those and/or what will exist on those in the future (“light industrially” zoned properties
on which  two warehouse  distribution  centers will  go  in;  plus,  a  vacant  property  followed  by Discovery
Boulevard and then the Rockwall Downes subdivision). This is directly across from existing apartments.  
 

17



Page 15 of 16 

 

Councilmember Moeller  then moved  to approve SP2022‐044. Councilmember  Jorif seconded  the motion,
which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  

3. Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance amending the budget for fiscal year 2022, and 
take any action necessary. 

Mrs. Smith, City Manager, provided brief comments related to this agenda item. Mayor Pro Tem Johannesen
moved to approve the ordinance. Councilmember Macalik seconded the motion. The ordinance was read as
follows: 
 
The motion to approve passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  
4.   Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance adopting the proposed budget for fiscal year 2023, and take any

action necessary. 

Councilmember  Jorif  moved  to  approve  the  ordinance  adopting  the  budget.  Councilmember  Daniels
seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as follows: 
 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
ORDINANCE NO.  22-49 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
APPROVING AND ADOPTING A BUDGET FOR THE CITY FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 
OCTOBER 1, 2022, THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30, 2023; PROVIDING THAT EXPENDITURES 
FOR SAID FISCAL YEAR SHALL BE MADE IN ACCORDANCE WITH SAID BUDGET; AND 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  
5.   Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Economic Development Corporation (REDC) budget for fiscal year

(FY) 2023 and amended budget for fiscal year 2022, as well as the 'Annual Work Plan' for FY2023, and take any action
necessary.  

Councilmember Daniels moved to approve the REDC budget for FY2023 and the amended REDC budget for
FY2022. Councilmember Johannesen seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of Council (7‐0). 
  
6.   Discuss and consider approval of the Rockwall Technology Park Association budget for fiscal year 2023 and amended

budget for fiscal year 2022, and take any action necessary. 

Councilmember  Jorif moved  to  approve  the Rockwall  Tech  Park Association  budget  for  FY2023  and  the
amended budget for FY2022. Mayor Fowler seconded the motion, which passed unanimously of Council (7‐
0). 
  
7.   Discuss and consider approval of an ordinance levying ad valorem taxes for the tax year 2022, and take any action

necessary. 

Mrs. Smith shared that this tax rate is the lowest tax rate the City of Rockwall has ever had in the history of 
tax rates having been recorded. Councilmember Macalik moved to approve the ordinance adopting the tax
rate for tax year 2022. Councilmember Campbell seconded the motion. The ordinance caption was read as 
follows: 

CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS 
ORDINANCE NO. 22-50 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, LEVYING 
THE AD VALOREM TAXES FOR THE YEAR 2022 AT A RATE OF $.2925 PER ONE 
HUNDRED DOLLARS ($100.00) ASSESSED VALUATION ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY 

18



Page 16 of 16 

 

WITHIN THE CORPORATE LIMITS OF THE CITY AS OF JANUARY 1, 2022 TO PROVIDE 
REVENUES FOR THE PAYMENT OF CURRENT EXPENSES AND TO PROVIDE AN 
INTEREST AND SINKING FUND ON ALL OUTSTANDING DEBTS OF THE CITY; 
PROVIDING FOR DUE AND DELINQUENT DATES, TOGETHER WITH PENALTIES AND 
INTEREST; APPROVING THE 2022 TAX ROLL; PROVIDING FOR EXEMPTIONS OF 
PERSONS OVER SIXTY-FIVE (65) YEARS; PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
The motion passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
  
8.   Discuss and consider  the Hotel Tax Subcommittee  recommendations  for  funding allocations  in  fiscal year 2023,

including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated funding arrangements, and take any action necessary.

Mayor Fowler asked Councilmembers to be sure to recuse themselves from anything from which they need
to recuse themselves pertaining to approval of these funding requests, if necessary. 
 
Councilmember Jorif moved to approve the funding recommendations from the subcommittee for FY2023, 
including  authorizing  the  City  Manager  to  execute  associated  funding  arrangements.  Mayor  Pro  Tem 
Johannesen seconded the motion, which passed by a vote of 7 ayes to 0 nays. 
 
XIII. EXECUTIVE SESSION.     

THE CITY OF ROCKWALL CITY COUNCIL WILL RECESS INTO EXECUTIVE SESSION TO DISCUSS THE FOLLOWING MATTER AS AUTHORIZED BY 

CHAPTER 551 OF THE TEXAS GOVERNMENT CODE:  

   
1.  Discussion regarding (re)appointments to city regulatory boards and commissions, pursuant to Section, §551.074 

(Personnel Matters) 
   

2.  Discussion regarding Economic Development prospects, projects, and/or  incentives pursuant to Section 551.087
(Economic Development). 

   
3.  Discussion regarding possible purchase of real property in the vicinity of SH‐205, generally located near Mims Road,

pursuant to Section §551.072 (Real Property) and Section §551.071 (Consultation with Attorney). 

XIV. RECONVENE PUBLIC MEETING & TAKE ANY ACTION AS RESULT OF EXECUTIVE SESSION  

XV. ADJOURNMENT  
 

Mayor Fowler adjourned the Council meeting at 8:28 p.m.     

PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS ON THIS 3rd DAY 

OF OCTOBER, 2022. 

KEVIN FOWLER, MAYOR 
ATTEST:   

 
 

KRISTY TEAGUE, CITY SECRETARY 

19



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-51 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS 
HERETOFORE AMENDED, SO AS TO CHANGE THE ZONING FROM 
AN AGRICULTURAL (AG) DISTRICT TO PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 98 (PD-98) FOR SINGLE FAMILY 10 (SF-10) DISTRICT AND 
COMMERCIAL (C) DISTRICT LAND USES ON THE SUBJECT 
PROPERTY, BEING A 264.510-ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED 
AS TRACTS 17-13, 17-14, 17-15, 17-16 & 40-8 OF THE W. W. FORD 
SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 80, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS AND MORE FULLY DESCRIBED HEREIN BY 
EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED HEREIN BY EXHIBIT ‘B’; PROVIDING 
FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request by Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development on 
behalf of Scott Asbury of Rockwall Highgate, LTD for the approval of a zoning change from an 
Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF-10) District 
and Commercial (C) District land uses, on a 264.510-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13 
[50.00-Acres], 17-14 [26.452-Acres], 17-15 [134.33-Acres], 17-16 [43.60-Acres], & 40-8 [8.79-
Acres] of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas and 
more fully described in Exhibit ‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of this ordinance, which hereinafter 
shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area, and in the vicinity thereof, and the 
governing body in the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified 
Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Subject Property shall be used only in the manner and for the purposes 
authorized by this Planned Development District Ordinance and the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall as heretofore amended, as amended herein by 
granting this zoning change, and as maybe amended in the future; 
 
SECTION 2. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 
the Concept Plan, depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, attached hereto and incorporated 
herein by reference as Exhibit ‘C’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of approval of the 
amended zoning classification for the Subject Property;  
 
SECTION 3. That development of the Subject Property shall generally be in accordance with 

20



the Density and Development Standards, outlined in Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance, attached hereto 
and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit ‘D’, which is deemed hereby to be a condition of 
approval of the amended zoning classification for the Subject Property; 
 
SECTION 4. That a Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the Subject Property -- prepared in 
accordance with this ordinance and consistent with the Planned Development Concept Plan 
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance -- shall be considered for approval by the City Council 
following recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 
SECTION 5. That residential development on the Subject Property shall be in conformance with 
the schedule listed below (except as set forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and 
approvals). 

 
(a) The procedures set forth in the City’s subdivision regulations on the date this 

ordinance is approved by the City, as amended by this ordinance [including 
Subsections 5(b) through 5(g) below], shall be the exclusive procedures applicable to 
the subdivision and platting of the Subject Property.  
 

(b) The following plans and plats shall be required in the order listed below (except as set 
forth below with regard to simultaneous processing and approvals). The City Council 
shall act on an application for a Master Parks and Open Space Plan in accordance 
with the time period specified in Section 212.009 of the Texas Local Government 
Code. 

 
(1) Master Parks and Open Space Plan  
(2) Master Plat  
(3) Preliminary Plat 
(4) PD Site Plan 
(5) Final Plat 

 
(c) Master Parks and Open Space Plan.  A Master Parks and Open Space Plan for the 

Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, prepared in accordance 
with this ordinance, shall be considered for approval by the City Council following 
recommendation of the Parks and Recreation Board. 
 

(d) Master Plat. A Master Plat for the Subject Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance, shall be submitted and shall identify the proposed timing of each phase of 
the proposed development. A Master Plat application may be processed by the City 
concurrently with a Master Parks and Open Space Plan application for the 
development. 
 

(e) Preliminary Plat. A Preliminary Plat for each phase of the Subject Property, as 
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted in accordance with the 
phasing plan established by the Master Plat and shall include a Treescape Plan for 
the phase being Preliminary Platted. A Preliminary Plat application may be processed 
by the City concurrently with a Master Plat and a Master Parks and Open Space Plan 
application for the development. 
 

(f) PD Site Plan.  A PD Site Plan for each phase of the development of the Subject 
Property, as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, shall be submitted and shall 
identify all site/landscape/hardscape plan(s) for all open space, neighborhood parks, 
trail systems, street buffers and entry features.  A PD Site Plan application may be 
processed by the City concurrently with a Final Plat application for the development. 

21



(g) Final Plat. Prior to the issuance of any building permits, a Final Plat, conforming to the 
Preliminary Plat, shall be submitted for approval. 

 
SECTION 6.   That commercial development on the Subject Property shall be in conformance 
with the process and procedures stipulated by this Planned Development District ordinance, the 
City’s subdivision regulations, and the Unified Development Code (UDC); 
 
SECTION 7.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 
 
SECTION 8.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid 
portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions 
for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 9.  The standards in this ordinance shall control in the event of a conflict between this 
ordinance and any provision of the Unified Development Code or any provision of the City Code, 
ordinance, resolution, rule, regulation, or procedure that provides a specific standard that is 
different from and inconsistent with this ordinance. References to zoning district regulations or 
other standards in the Unified Development Code (including references to the Unified 
Development Code), and references to overlay districts, in this ordinance or any of the Exhibits 
hereto are those in effect on the date this ordinance was passed and approved by the City Council 
of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 10.  That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage; 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022. 

 
 

      
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 

    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 

1st Reading:  September 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2022 

22



 
BEING a 264.61-acre tract of land situated in the W. M. Ford Survey, Abstract Number 80, Rockwall County, 
Texas, and being all of a called 43.30-acre tract of land (Tract 1) and a called 212.55-acre tract of land 
(Tract 2) described by deed to Highgate Equestrian Center Property, L.P., recorded in County Clerk's File 
Number 2007-375596, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and being all of that certain tract of land 
described by deed to Rockwall Highgate, LTD., recorded in County Clerk's File Number 2008-404731, Deed 
Records, Rockwall County, Texas, and being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows: 
 
BEGINNING at the Southeast corner of said called 212.55-acre tract, being at the intersection of the 
southwest right-of-way line of State Highway No. 205, and the northwest line of Wylie Lane; 
THENCE South 44 Degrees 31Minutes 24 Seconds West, along the northwest line of said Wylie Lane, a 
distance of 2609.49 feet, to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 45 Degrees 18 Minutes 48 Seconds West, continuing along said northwest line, a distance 
of 1,147.99 feet, to the southwest corner of said called 43.30-acre tract; 
 
THENCE North 45 Degrees 02 Minutes 31 Seconds West, departing said northwest line, and along the 
southwest line of said called 212.55-acre tract, a distance of 315.56-feet, to the easternmost corner of said 
called Rockwall Highgate tract; 
 
THENCE South 44 Degrees 22 Minutes 37 Seconds West, departing said West line and along the 
southeast line of said Rockwall Highgate tract, a distance of 690.66-feet, to the southernmost corner of said 
Rockwall Highgate tract; 
 
THENCE North 32 Degrees 22 Minutes 19 Seconds West, departing said southeast line and along the 
West line of Rockwall Highgate tract, a distance of 680.55-feet, to the northwest corner of said Rockwall 
Highgate tract; 
 
THENCE North 62 Degrees 32 Minutes 45 Seconds East, departing said West line and along the northwest 
line of said Rockwall Highgate tract, a distance of 110.73-feet; 
 
THENCE North 62 Degrees 13 Minutes 29 Seconds East, continuing along said northwest line, a distance 
of 43.88-feet; 
 
THENCE North 45 Degrees 26 Minutes 21 Seconds East, continuing along said North line, a distance of 
393.74-feet, to the northernmost corner of said Rockwall Highgate tract, being on the southwest line of said 
called 43.30-acre tract and being on the northeast line of Travis Lane; 
 
THENCE Northerly, departing said North line and along the northeast line of said Travis Lane, the following 
calls: North 45 Degrees 00 Minutes 29 Seconds West, a distance of 599.06-feet, to a point for corner; 
 

North 43 Degrees 53 Minutes 14 Seconds West, a distance of 436.95-feet, to a point for corner; 
North 48 Degrees 27 Minutes 46 Seconds West, a distance of 237.14-feet, to a point for corner; 
North 39 Degrees 48 Minutes 03 Seconds West, a distance of 184.23-feet, to a point for corner; 
North 44 Degrees 40 Minutes 42 Seconds West, a distance of 244.69-feet, to a point for corner; 
South 45 Degrees 08 Minutes 57 Seconds West, a distance of 12.69-feet, to a point for corner; 
 
North 45 Degrees 01 Minutes 43 Seconds West, a distance of 260.06-feet, to the lower northwest 
corner of said called 43.30-acre tract, same being the southwest corner of a that certain tract of land 
described by deed to Bret A. Wilson and Leslie Wilson, recorded in County Clerk's File Number 
1998- 181246, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 

 
THENCE North 44 Degrees 58 Minutes 51 Seconds East, departing said East line and along the lower 
North line of said called 43.30-acre tract, being common with the South line of said Wilson tract, a distance 
of 467.61-feet, to the southeast corner of said Wilson tract; 
 

23



North 31 Degrees 15 Minutes 14 Seconds West, departing said common line and along the upper 
West line of said called 43.30-acre tract, a distance of 857.52-feet, to the northwest corner of said 
called 43.30-acre tract, being on the South right-of-way line of FM Highway No. 549; 

 
THENCE North 45 Degrees 31 Minutes 38 Seconds East, a long said South right-of-way line, a distance of 
121.99-feet, to a point for corner; 
 

North 45 Degrees 00 Minutes 31 Seconds East, continuing a long said South right-of-way line, a 
distance of 703.71-feet, to the upper northeast corner of said called 212.55-acre tract, same being 
the northwest corner of that certain tract of land described by deed to Cody A. Barrick and Wife, 
recorded in County Clerk's File Number 2010-436143, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 

 
THENCE South 45 Degrees 05 Minutes 09 Seconds East, departing said South right-of-way line and along 
the upper East line of said called 2 12.55-acre tract, being common with the West line of said Barrick tract, 
a distance of 995.00-feet, to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 86 Degrees 43 Minutes 47 Seconds East, continuing along said common line, a distance 
of 21.21-feet, to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE North 44 Degrees 53 Minutes 41 Seconds East, departing said common line and along the lower 
North line of said called 212.55-acre tract, being common with the South line of said Barrick tract, a distance 
of 524.11-feet, to the southeast corner of said Barrick tract, same being the southwest corner of that certain 
tract of land described by deed to Thomas Enloe and Wife, recorded in County Clerk's File Number 2014-
16421, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE North 44 Degrees 59 Minutes 41 Seconds East, departing said common line and along the lower 
North line of said called 212.55-acre tract, being common with the South line of said  Enloe tract, a distance 
of 539.08-feet, to the southeast corner of said Enloe tract, same being the southwest corner of a called  
12.493-acre tract of land  described  by deed to Scott W. Blackwood and Glenita G. Blackwood, recorded 
in Volume 2884, Page 250, Deed  Records,  Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE North 44 Degrees 44 Minutes 22 Seconds East, departing said common line and along the lower 
North line of said called 212.55-acre tract, being common with the South line of said  called 12.493-acre 
tract, a distance of 541.09-feet, to the southeast corner of said  called 12.493-acre tract, same being the 
southwest corner of that certain tract of land described by deed to Dr. Mohiudin Zeb, recorded in County 
Clerk's File Number 1995-156072, Deed Records, Rockwall County, Texas; 
 
THENCE North 44 Degrees 56 Minutes 40 Seconds East, departing said common line and along the lower 
North line of said called 212.55-acre tract, being common with the South line of said Zeb tract, a distance 
of 606.32-feet, to the southeast corner of said Zeb tract, being on the West right-of-way line of said State 
Highway No. 205; 
 
THENCE South 45 Degrees 37 Minutes 13 Seconds East, departing said common line and along said West 
right-of-way line, a distance of 1,121.18-feet, to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 45 Degrees 51 Minutes 23 Seconds East, continuing along said East right-of-way line, a 
distance of 621.15-feet, to a point for corner; 
 
THENCE South 45 Degrees 50 Minutes 42 Seconds East, continuing a long said East right-of-way line, a 
distance of 951.25-feet, to the POINT OF BEGINNING, and containing 264.61-acres of land, more or less. 

24



25



 

26



Density and Development Standards. 
 

(1) Permitted Uses.  Unless specifically provided by this Planned Development District 
ordinance, the following uses are permitted on the Subject Property: 

 
(a) Residential Land Uses. Residential land uses shall be allowed only within the area 

designated for residential lots as depicted on the Concept Plan in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance.  These areas are limited to those uses permit by-right or by Specific Use 
Permit (SUP) for the Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, as stipulated by the 
Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the Unified 
Development Code (UDC). 
 

(b) Non-Residential Land Uses. Non-residential land uses shall be allowed only within 
the area designated for Commercial land uses as depicted on the Concept Plan in 
Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.  These areas are limited to those uses permitted by-
right or by Specific Use Permit (SUP) for the Commercial (C) District as stipulated 
by the Permissible Use Charts contained in Article 04, Permissible Uses, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) and subject to the approval of a PD Development 
Plan and PD Site Plan in accordance with the Planned Development District 
regulations contained in Article 10, Planned Development District Regulations, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC); however, the following uses are expressly 
prohibited: 

 
 Animal Boarding/Kennel without Outside Pens 
 Animal Hospital or Clinic 
 Convent, Monastery, or Temple 
 Commercial Parking Garage 
 Residence Hotel 
 Motel 
 Cemetery/Mausoleum 
 Congregate Care Facility/Elderly Housing 
 Emergency Ground Ambulance Services 
 Hospital 
 Mortuary or Funeral Chapel 
 Temporary Carnival, Circus, or Amusement 
 Private Sports Arena, Stadium, and or Track 
 Portable Beverage Service Facility 
 Temporary Christmas Tree Sales Lot and/or Similar Uses 
 Copy Center 
 Garden Supply/Plant Nursery 
 Self Service Laundromat 
 Night Club, Discotheque, or Dance Hall 
 Pawn Shop 
 Rental Store without Outside Storage and/or Display 
 Retail Store with Gasoline Sales that has more than Two (2) Dispensers 
 Bail Bond Service 
 Building and Landscape Material with Limited Outside Storage 
 Building Maintenance, Service, and Sales without Outside Storage 
 Furniture Upholstery/Refinishing and Resale 
 Rental, Sales, and Service of Heavy Machinery and Equipment 
 Research and Technology or Light Assembly 

27



 Trade School 
 Minor Auto Repair Garage 
 New or Used Boat and Trailer Dealership 
 Self Service Car Wash 
 New and/or Use Indoor Motor Vehicle Dealership/Showroom 
 New Motor Vehicle Dealership-for Cars and Light Trucks 
 Used Motor Vehicle Dealership-for Cars and Light Trucks 
 Commercial Parking 
 Non-Commercial Parking Lot 
 Recreational Vehicle (RV) Sales and Service 
 Service Station 
 Mining and Extraction of Sand, Gravel, Oil and/or Other Materials 
 Commercial Freestanding Antenna 
 Helipad 
 Railroad Yard or Shop 
 Transit Passenger Facility  

 
(2) Residential Lot Composition and Layout. The lot layout and composition shall generally 

conform to the Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ and stated in Table 1, which is as 
follows: 

 
Table 1: Lot Composition 

     

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size (FT) Minimum Lot Size (SF) Dwelling Units (#) Dwelling Units (%) 
A 130’ x 240’ 43,560 SF 43 11.20% 
B 110’ x 190’ 24,000 SF 26 06.77% 
C 80’ x 115’ 11, 000 SF 66 17.19% 
D 80’ x 110’ 9,600 SF 43 11.20% 
E 62’ x 110’ 7,200 SF 206 53.65% 

     

Maximum Permitted Units: 384 100.00% 
     

 
(3) Variation in Residential Lot Composition. The allocation of single-family residential lot 

types may deviate from that in Subsection (2), Residential Lot Composition and Layout, 
provided that the maximum allowed total dwelling units does not exceed 384 units 
provided [1] a minimum of 46.40% of the total lot count be comprised of Lot Types ‘A’, 
‘B’, ‘C’ & ‘D’, [2] a minimum of 43 Lot Type ‘A’ lots and 26 Lot Type ‘B’ lots are provided, 
and [3] a maximum of 53.65% Lot Type ‘E’ lots can be provided.  
 

(4) Density and Dimensional Requirements. Unless specifically provided by this Planned 
Development District ordinance, the development standards stipulated for the Subject 
Property shall be as follows: 

 
(a) Residential. Except as modified by this Planned Development District ordinance, 

residential land uses on the Subject Property shall be required to meet the 
development standards for the Single-Family 10 (SF-10) District, as specified by 
Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC).  
The maximum permissible density for the Subject Property shall not exceed 1.45 
dwelling units per gross acre of land; however, in no case should the proposed 
development exceed 384 units.  All lots shall conform to the standards depicted in 
Table 2, which are as follows: 

 
 
 

28



Table 2: Lot Dimensional Requirements 
 

Lot Type (see Concept Plan) ►  A B C D E 
Minimum Lot Width (1) 130’ 110’ 80’ 80’ 62’ 
Minimum Lot Depth 240’ 190’ 115’ 110’ 110’ 
Minimum Lot Area (SF) 43,560 24,000 11,000 9,600 7,200 
Minimum Front Yard Setback (2), (5) & (6) 40’ 30’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback 15’ 10’ 6’ 6’ 6’ 
Minimum Side Yard Setback (Adjacent to a Street) (2) & (5) 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 15’ 

Minimum Length of Driveway Pavement (7) 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 20’ 

Maximum Height (3) 35’ 35’ 35’ 35’ 35’ 

Minimum Rear Yard Setback (4) 50’ 50’ 10’ 10’ 10’ 
Minimum Area/Dwelling Unit (SF) [Air-Conditioned Space]  3,800 3,200 2,500 2,500 2,200 
Maximum Lot Coverage 50% 50% 65% 65% 65% 

 

General Notes: 
1:  Lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-sacs and eyebrows may have the front lot width reduced 

by 20% as measured at the front property line provided that the lot width will be met at the Front 
Yard Building Setback.  Additionally, the lot depth on lots fronting onto curvilinear streets, cul-de-
sacs and eyebrows may be reduced by up to ten (10) percent, but shall meet the minimum lot size 
for each lot type referenced in Table 1. 

2:  The location of the Front Yard Building Setback as measured from the front property line. 
3:  The Maximum Height shall be measured to the eave or top plate (whichever is greater) of the single-

family home. 
4: The location of the Rear Yard Building Setback as measured from the rear property line. 
5: Sunrooms, porches, stoops, bay windows, balconies, masonry clad chimneys, eaves and similar 

architectural features may encroach beyond the Front Yard Building Setback by up to ten (10) feet 
for any property; however, the encroachment shall not exceed five (5) feet on Side Yard Setbacks.  
A sunroom is an enclosed room no more than 15-feet in width that has glass on at least 50% of 
each of the encroaching faces. 

6: J-Swing or Traditional Swing Garages are permitted to encroach into the front yard building setback 
a maximum of five (5) feet. 

7: Type ‘A’, ‘B’, ‘C’ & ‘D’ lots shall have a minimum of a three (3) car garage. 
 
(b) Non-Residential. Except as modified by this Planned Development District 

ordinance, the non-residential land uses on the Subject Property shall be required 
to meet the development standards stipulated by the General Overlay District 
Standards, General Commercial District Standards, and the standards required for 
the Commercial (C) District as stipulated by Article 05, District Development 
Standards, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) for a property in a Commercial 
(C) District.  In addition, the Commercial area shall be designed to be pedestrian-
oriented and easily accessible to the adjacent residential neighborhoods, and be 
constructed to be integrated with the adjacent uses, not be separated from them by 
screening walls or other physical barriers.  This will be accomplished by creating 
paths from the adjacent development into the Commercial area and through the use 
of landscaping buffers utilizing a berm and three (3) tiered screening (i.e. [1] a small 
to mid-sized shrub, [2] large shrubs or accent trees, and [3] canopy trees on 20-foot 
centers), and building design and other urban design elements to create 
compatibility with the surrounding residential neighborhood. 

 
(5) Building Standards for Residential. All residential development shall adhere to the 

following building standards: 
 

(a) Masonry Requirement. The minimum masonry requirement for the exterior façade 
of all buildings shall be 90% (excluding dormers and walls over roof areas).  For the 
purposes of this ordinance, the masonry requirement shall be limited to full width 

29



brick, natural stone, and cast stone.  Cementitious fiberboard (e.g. HardiBoard or 
Hardy Plank) in a horizontal lap-siding, board-and-batten siding, or a decorative 
pattern (see examples below) may be used for up to 80% of the masonry 
requirement; however, administrative approval from the Director of Planning and 
Zoning may be requested for housing plans that utilize cementitous fiberboard in 
excess of 80% of the masonry requirement on a case-by-case basis. 

 
FIGURE 1: EXAMPLES OF CEMENTITIOUS FIBERBOARD 

 
 
FIGURE 2: EXAMPLES OF BOARD AND BATTEN 
 

  
 
FIGURE 3: EXAMPLES OF HORIZONTAL LAP 
 

  
 

(b) Roof Pitch. A minimum of an 8:12 roof pitch is required on all structures with the 
exception of dormers, sunrooms and porches, which shall have a minimum of a 4:12 
roof pitch. 

 

30



(c) Garage Orientation and Garage Doors. A total of 19.79% or 76 of the 384 lots may 
have garages that are oriented toward the street in a Front Entry garage 
configuration; however, the front façade of the garage must be situated a minimum 
of five (5) feet behind the front façade of the primary structure.  The remaining 
80.21% or 308 lots shall have garages that are oriented in a J-Swing (or Traditional 
Swing) configuration or be situated a minimum of 20-feet behind the front façade of 
the home.  In addition, the following architectural elements must be incorporated into 
all garage configurations: [1] divided garage bay doors (i.e. for two (2) car garages 
two (2) individual entrances and for three (3) car garages a standard two (2) bay 
garage door with a single bay garage door adjacent), [2] carriage style hardware and 
lighting, [3] decorative wood doors or wood overlays on insulated metal doors, and 
[4] driveways must be constructed with ornamental stamped concrete brick pavers, 
broom finished, or salt finish.  An example of a garage door meeting these standards 
is depicted in Figure 4. 

 
Figure 4. Examples of Enhanced Wood Garage Door 

 
  

(6) Anti-Monotony Restrictions. The development shall adhere to the Anti-Monotony Matrix 
depicted in Table 3 below (for spacing requirements see Figures 5 & 6 below). 
 
Table 3: Anti-Monotony Matrix 

Lot Type Minimum Lot Size Elevation Features 
A 130’ x 240’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
B 110’ x 190’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
C 80’ x 115’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
D 80’ x 110’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
E 62’ x 110’ (1), (2), (3), (4) 
 

(a) Identical brick blends or paint colors may not occur on adjacent (side-by-side) 
properties along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing 
materials on the same side of the street beginning with the adjacent property and six 
(6) intervening homes of differing materials on the opposite side of the street. 

 
(b) Front building elevations shall not repeat along any block face without at least five 

(5) intervening homes of differing appearance on the same side of the street and six 
(6) intervening homes of differing appearance on the opposite side of the street.  The 
rear elevation of homes backing to open spaces, FM-549 or Wylie Road shall not 

31



Figure 6: Properties do not line up on opposite side of the street. Where RED is the subject property. 

repeat without at least five (5) intervening homes of differing appearance. Homes 
are considered to have a differing appearance if any of the following two (2) items 
deviate: 

 
(1) Number of Stories 
(2) Permitted Encroachment Type and Layout 
(3) Roof Type and Layout 
(4) Articulation of the Front Façade  

  
(c) Permitted encroachment (i.e. porches and sunroom) elevations shall not repeat or 

be the same along any block face without at least five (5) intervening homes of 
sufficient dissimilarity on the same side of the street beginning with the home 
adjacent to the subject property and six (6) intervening homes beginning with the 
home on the opposite side of the street. 

 
(d) Each phase of the subdivision will allow for a maximum of four (4) compatible roof 

colors, and all roof shingles shall be an architectural or dimensional shingle (3-Tab 
Roofing Shingles are prohibited). 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

(7) Fencing Standards. All individual residential fencing and walls shall be architecturally 
compatible with the design, materials and colors of the primary structure on the same 
lot, and meet the following standards: 

 
(a) Front Yard Fences.  Front yard fences shall be prohibited. 

 

Figure 5: Properties line up on the opposite side of the street.  Where RED is the subject property. 

32



(b) Wood Fences.  All solid fencing shall be constructed utilizing standard cedar fencing 
materials (spruce fencing is prohibited) that are a minimum of ½-inch or greater in 
thickness. Fences shall be board-on-board panel fence that is constructed a 
minimum of six (6) feet in height and a maximum of eight (8) feet in height. Posts, 
fasteners, and bolts shall be formed from hot dipped galvanized or stainless steel. 
All cedar pickets shall be placed on the public side (i.e. facing streets, alleys, open 
space, parks, and/or neighboring properties). All posts and/or framing shall be 
placed on the private side (i.e. facing towards the home) of the fence. All wood 
fences shall be smooth finished, free of burs and splinters, and be stained and 
sealed on both sides of the fence. Painting a fence with oil or latex based paint shall 
be prohibited. 
 

(c) Wrought Iron/Tubular Steel.  Type ‘A’ & ‘B’ Lots shall incorporate wrought 
iron/tubular steel fencing exclusively; however, only Type ‘C’, ‘D’, & ‘E’ lots located 
along perimeter roadways (i.e. FM-549 and Wylie Road), abutting open spaces, 
greenbelts and parks shall be required to install wrought iron/tubular steel fence 
along the rear and side property lines and shall be allowed to install solid wood fence 
along the front fence line to allow for screening of condenser units and to reduce 
visibility of the backyard from the front of the home. The only exception to this 
standard shall be the Type ‘E’ lots that back to Wylie Lane, which shall be required 
to construct a wood fence in accordance with the requirements of this ordinance.  
Wrought iron / tubular steel fences can be a maximum of six (6) feet in height. 
 

(d) Corner Lots. Corner lots fences (i.e. adjacent to the street) shall provide masonry 
columns at 45-feet off center spacing that begins at the rear of the property line.  A 
maximum of six (6) foot solid board-on-board panel fence constructed utilizing cedar 
fencing shall be allowed between the masonry columns along the side and/or rear 
lot adjacent to a street.  In addition, the fencing shall be setback from the side 
property line adjacent to a street a minimum of five (5) feet.  The property owner 
shall be required to maintain both sides of the fence. 
 

(e) Solid Fences (including Wood Fences). All solid fences shall incorporate a 
decorative top rail or cap detailing into the design of the fence. 

 
(f) Fence in Easements.  No fencing shall be constructed in or across North Texas 

Municipal Water District (NTMWD) and/or City of Rockwall’s easements.  
 

(8) Landscape and Hardscape Standards.  
 

(a) Landscape. Landscaping shall be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan.  All 
Canopy/Shade Trees planted within this development shall be a minimum of four (4) 
caliper inches in size and all Accent/Ornamental/Under-Story Trees shall be a 
minimum of four (4) feet in total height.  Any residential lot that sides or backs to a 
major roadway where wrought iron/tubular steel fencing is required, shall also be 
required to plant a row of shrubs adjacent to the wrought iron/tubular fence within 
the required 30-foot landscape buffer (i.e. on the Homeowner’s Associations’ 
[HOAs’] property).  These shrubs shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 
 

(b) Landscape Buffers. All landscape buffers and plantings located within the buffers 
shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA). 

33



 
(1) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (FM-549). A minimum of a 50-foot landscape 

buffer shall be provided along FM-549 (outside of and beyond any required right-
of-way dedication), and shall incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and 
shrubbery along the entire length of the frontage.  Berms and shrubbery shall 
have a minimum height of 48-inches each.  In addition, three (3) canopy trees 
and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of linear frontage.  A 
meandering six (6) foot trail shall be constructed within the 50-foot landscape 
buffer. 
 

(2) Landscape Buffer (Adjacent to Residential Properties).  A minimum of a 50-
landscape buffer shall be provided along the Type ‘A’ lots adjacent to 453 & 535 
Cullins Road and 5459 FM-549 (as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance), and 
shall incorporate a berm a minimum of five (5) feet in height.  On the berm, two 
(2), staggered rows of evergreen trees -- either Eastern Red Cedar or Leland 
Cypress unless otherwise approved by the Director of Planning and Zoning --, a 
minimum of six (6) feet in height shall be planted on ten (10) foot centers to create 
a solid living screen adjacent to these properties. 
 

(3) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (Residential SH-205). A minimum of a 30-foot 
landscape buffer shall be provided along SH-205 for the residential property 
(outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall 
incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and shrubbery along the entire length 
of the frontage.  Berms and shrubbery shall have a minimum height of 48-inches.  
In addition, three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 
100-feet of linear frontage.  A meandering six (6) foot trail shall be constructed 
within the 30-foot landscape buffer. 

 
(4) Landscape Buffer and Sidewalks (Non-Residential SH-205). A minimum of a 20-

foot landscape buffer shall be provided for the Commercial property along SH-
205 (outside of and beyond any required right-of-way dedication), and shall 
incorporate ground cover, a built-up berm and shrubbery along the entire length 
of the frontage.  Berms shall have a minimum height of 48-inches.  In addition, 
three (3) canopy trees and four (4) accent trees shall be planted per 100-feet of 
linear frontage.  A meandering six (6) foot trail shall be constructed within the 20-
foot landscape buffer. 

 
(5) Commercial Landscape Buffer (Adjacent to Residential Properties).  A minimum 

of a 50-foot landscape buffer with a minimum of a 48-inch berm and three (3) 
tiered screening (i.e. [1] a small to mid-sized shrub, [2] large shrubs or accent 
trees, and [3] canopy trees on 20-foot centers) shall be provided on commercial 
properties that have direct adjacency to residential properties as generally 
depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance. 

 
(6) Landscape Buffer in the Open Spaces and Public Park. The open space and 

public park shall require a ten (10) foot landscape buffer that incorporates ground 
cover, a built-up berm and shrubbery along the entire length of open space.  In 
addition, one (1) canopy tree and one (1) accent tree per 50-linear feet shall be 
required to be planted. 
 

34



(7) Landscape Buffer (Adjacent to the Type ‘E’ Lots on Wylie Lane). A minimum of 
a ten (10) foot landscape buffer shall be provided adjacent to the Type ‘E’ along 
Wylie Lane.  This landscape buffer shall incorporate a built-up berm and 
evergreen trees -- either Eastern Red Cedar or Leland Cypress unless otherwise 
approved by the Director of Planning and Zoning -- on 25-foot centers along 
entire length of the frontage. 

 
(8) Tree Preservation Easement Along Wylie Lane. A minimum of a ten (10) foot 

tree preservation easement shall be provided along Wylie Lane as depicted in 
Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance.  This area shall be established to preserve the 
existing natural tree line along the southern property boundary for the benefit of 
the property directly south of the subject property (i.e. 924 Wylie Lane). 

 
(c) Street Trees. The Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be responsible for the 

maintenance of all street trees and will be required to maintain a minimum of 14-feet 
vertical clearance height for any trees overhanging a public right-of-way.  Street trees 
shall be planted a minimum of five (5) feet from public water, sanitary sewer and 
storm lines that are less than ten (10) inches and ten (10) feet from public water, 
sanitary sewer and storm lines that are greater than ten (10) inches.  All street trees 
shall be reviewed with the PD Site Plan. 
 

(d) Residential Lot Landscaping.  Prior to the issuance of a Certificate of Occupancy 
(CO), all residential lots depicted on Exhibit ‘C’ shall be landscaped with a minimum 
of two (2), four (4) inch caliper canopy trees (as measured per Article 08, Landscape 
and Fence Standards, of the Unified Development Code [UDC]) within the front yard.  
In addition, corner lots shall be required to add a minimum of two (2), four (4) inch 
caliper canopy trees (as measured per Article 08, Landscape and Fence Standards, 
of the Unified Development Code [UDC]) within the side yard facing the street. 
 

(e) Irrigation Requirements. Irrigation shall be installed for all required landscaping 
located within detention areas, common areas, landscape buffers, and/or open 
space.  Irrigation installed in these areas shall be designed by a Texas licensed 
irrigator or landscape architect and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA). 
 

(f) Hardscape. Hardscape plans indicating the location of all sidewalks and trails shall 
be reviewed and approved with the PD Site Plan. 

 
(9) Street. All streets shall be built according to City street standards. 

 
(10) Lighting. Light poles shall not exceed 20-feet in total height (i.e. base and lighting 

standard).  All fixtures shall be directed downward and be positioned to contain all light 
within the development area. 
 

(11) Sidewalks. All sidewalks adjacent to a street shall be a maximum of two (2) feet inside 
the right-of-way line and be a minimum of five (5) feet in overall width. 
 

(12) Buried Utilities. New distribution power-lines required to serve the Subject Property shall 
be placed underground, whether such lines are located internally or along the perimeter 
of the Subject Property, unless otherwise authorized by the City Council.  Temporary 
power-lines constructed across undeveloped portions of the Subject Property to facilitate 

35



development phasing and looping may be allowed above ground, but shall not be 
considered existing lines at the time the area is developed, and if they are to become 
permanent facilities, such lines shall be placed underground pursuant to this paragraph.  
Franchise utilities shall be placed within a ten (10) foot public utility easement behind 
the sidewalk, between the home and the property line. 
 

(13) Park Improvements.  All park improvements within this development -- including all 
features outlined below -- shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).  
The development of the 11.60-acre public park – as depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance -- shall be developed with the first phase of the proposed subdivision and 
shall have fully established natural turf (e.g. seeding process) and be irrigated in 
accordance with the requirements of the Parks and Recreation Department of the City 
of Rockwall.  This area shall also incorporate the following improvements: 

 
(a) A Six (6) Foot Concrete Hike & Bike Trail. 
(b) A Playground. 
(c) A Plaza Area. 
(d) A Covered Pavilion. 
(e) A Picnic Area. 
(f) Benches. 
(g) Landscape Features (e.g. Trees and Other Vegetation). 
 
All improvement will need to be approved and accepted by the Parks and Recreation 
Board after being reviewed and recommended by the Director of Parks and Recreation.  
The dedication of the proposed public park shall satisfy all cash-in-lieu of land fees 
associated with this proposed development.  In addition, if the above stated 
improvements are greater than or equal to the required pro-rata equipment fees, then 
this fee shall be considered to be satisfied as well.  The costs/receipts for the 
improvements will need to be reviewed and compared to the cost of the pro-rata 
equipment fees -- and ultimately accepted -- by the Parks and Recreation Board in order 
to be considered to be satisfied. 
 

(14) Open Space/Public Park. The development shall consist of a minimum of 20% open 
space (or a minimum of 52.902-acres -- as calculated by the formula stipulated in the 
Comprehensive Plan), and generally conform to the Concept Plan contained in Exhibit 
‘C’ of this ordinance.   

 
(15) Amenity Center.  An amenity center shall be constructed in generally the same area as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, and shall be maintained by the Homeowner’s 
Association (HOA).  The design and layout of the amenity center shall be approved with 
the PD Site Plan. 

 
(16) Trails.  A minimum of a six (6) foot concrete trail system shall be constructed generally 

in the same location as the trail system depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ of this ordinance, and shall 
provide connectivity to the proposed Public Park. 
 

(17) Neighborhood Signage and Enhancements. Permanent subdivision identification 
signage shall be required at all major entry points for the proposed subdivision.  Final 
design and location of any entry features shall be reviewed and approved with the PD 
Site Plan.  The developer shall provide enhanced landscaping areas at all entry points 

36



to the Subject Property.  The final design of these areas shall be provided on the PD 
Site Plan. 
 

(18) Homeowner’s Association (HOA). A Homeowner’s Association (HOA) shall be created 
to enforce the restrictions established in accordance with the requirements of Section 
38-15 of the Subdivision Regulations contained within the Municipal Code of Ordinances 
of the City of Rockwall.  The HOA shall also maintain all private neighborhood parks, 
trails, open space and common areas (including drainage facilities), detention and 
drainage easements, floodplain areas, irrigation, landscaping, screening fences and 
neighborhood signage associated with this development.  These areas are required to 
be delineated on the PD Site Plan. 

 
(19) Gateway Signage. The City of Rockwall’s standard Gateway Signage shall be 

incorporated into the design of the commercial property at the southwest corner of the 
intersection of Wylie Lane and SH-205.  The signage shall be situated in a visible 
location as generally depicted on the Concept Plan contained in Exhibit ‘C’ of this 
ordinance and shall generally conform to Figures 7 & 8 below.  
 

FIGURE 7: STANDARD GATEWAY SIGANGE FOR THE CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

 
 

  

37



FIGURE 8: STANDARD GATEWAY SIGNAGE FOR THE CITY OF ROCKWALL (NIGHT VIEW) 
 

 
 

(20) Variances. The variance procedures and standards for approval that are set forth in the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) shall apply to any application for variances to this 
ordinance. 

38



  CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-52 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-287 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
TEXAS, AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT (SUP) TO ALLOW FOR A GOLF DRIVING RANGE ON A 
7.955-ACRE TRACT OF LAND BEING A PORTION OF A LARGER 
18.13-ACRE TRACT OF LAND AND A 12.868-ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 22 & 22-2 OF THE R. IRVINE SURVEY, 
ABSTRACT NO 120, CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, 
TEXAS; PROVIDING FOR SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR 
A PENALTY OR FINE NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO 
THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; 
PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
REPEALER CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, a request has been made by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates on behalf of 
Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) for a Golf Driving Range on a 7.955-acre parcel of land, zoned Commercial (C) District, 
situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, being identified as a portion of a larger 18.13-
acre tract of land and a 12.868-acre tract of land further identified as Tract 22 & 22-2 of the R. 
Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, generally located near 
the terminus of Fit Sport Life Boulevard, and being more specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of 
this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject Property and incorporated 
by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing 
body in the exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, 
as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit 
(SUP) allowing for the establishment of a Golf Driving Range as stipulated by Article 04, 
Permissible Uses, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject 
Property; and 
 
SECTION 2.  That the Subject Property shall be used and developed only in the manner and for 
the purposes described in this Specific Use Permit (SUP) ordinance and as specifically set forth 
in Subsection 01.01, Land Use Schedule, of Article 04, Permissible Uses, and Subsection 04.01, 
General Commercial District Standards; Subsection 04.05, Commercial (C) District; and 
Subsection 06.02, General Overlay District Standards, of Article 05, District Development 

39



Standards, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall -- as 
heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -- and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Golf Driving Range on the Subject Property 
and conformance to these requirements is necessary for continued operations: 
 
1) The development and operation of a Golf Driving Range shall generally conform to the 

Concept Plan depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ and Concept Building Elevations depicted in Exhibit ‘C’ 
of this ordinance. 
 

2) The maximum height of the netting and support structures shall not exceed 200-feet and shall 
generally conform to Exhibit ‘D’ of this ordinance. 
 

2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP), of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), should the business owner operating under 

the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) 
initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 
02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the 
Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3. That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 

 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 

 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance 
shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of 
fine not to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 

 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged 
invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the 
application of any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or 
circumstance, and the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and 
applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this 
ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022. 

 
 

40



 
      
 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 

ATTEST: 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  September 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2022 
 
  

41



BEING A TRACT OF LAND LOCATED IN THE ROBERT BOYD IRVINE SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 120, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, BEI NG A PORTION OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED 
TO STRUCTURED REA-ROCKWALL LAND, LLC, RECORDED I N I NSTRUMENT NO. 20210000001622, 
OFFICIAL PUBLIC RECORDS, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS (O.P.R.C.C.T.), AND BEING MORE 
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED BY METES AND BOUNDS AS FOLLOWS: 
 
BEGINNING AT A 1/2” IRON ROD FOUND, SAID IRON ROD BEING A NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
STRUCTURED TRACT, THE SOUTHEAST CORNER OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A DEED 
TO JOWERS, INC., RECORDED IN VOLUME 1215, PAGE 155, DEED RECORDS, ROCKWALL 
COUNTY, TEXAS (D.R.R.C.T.), AND IN THE WEST LINE OF A TRACT OF LAND DESCRIBED IN A 
DEED TO RUSTY WAWS FAMILY LIMITED, PARTNERSHIP #2. RECORDED IN VOLUME 4014, PAGE 
173, D.R.R.C.T., FROM WHICH A 5/8” IRON ROD FOUND WITH A PINK CAP STAMPED “TXDOT” 
BEARS N 01’41’51” W, 384.88 FEET, SAID IRON ROD BEING THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF SAID 
JOWERS TRACT AND THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID RUSTY WALLIS TRACT; 
 
THENCE S 01’41’51” E, ALONG AN EAST LINE OF SAID STRUCTURED TRACT AND THE WEST LINE 
OF SAID RUSTY WAWS TRACT, 390.33 FEET TO A POINT: 
 
THENCE S 66’40’31” W, DEPARTING AN EAST LINE OF SAID STRUCTURED TRACT AND THE WEST 
LINE OF SAID RUSTY WAWS TRACT, 554.53 FEET TO A POINT; 
 
THENCE N 69”37’39” W, A DISTANCE OF 307.50 FEET TO A POINT, BEING THE BEGINNING OF A 
NON-TANGENT CURVE TO THE RIGHT; 
 
THENCE NORTHWESTERLY, AN ARC LENGTH OF 3.78 FEET ALONG SAID NON-TANGENT CURVE 
TO THE RIGHT, HAVING A RADIUS OF 20.00 FEET, A DELTA ANGLE OF 10’50’27”, AND A CHORD 
BEARING OF N 14’22’25” W, 3.78 FEET TO A POINT; 
 
THENCE N 08’57’11” W, A DISTANCE OF 303.51 FEET TO A POINT, FROM WHICH A 5/8” IRON ROD 
FOUND WITH A PINK CAP STAMPED “TXDOT” BEARS S 89’22’04” W, 996.58 FEET, SAID IRON ROD 
BEING THE NORTHWEST CORNER OF SAID STRUCTURED TRACT AND BEING THE INTERSECTION 
OF THE EAST RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF CORPORATE CROSSING (VARIABLE WIDTH RIGHT-OF-
WAY) WITH THE SOUTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF INTERSTATE HIGHWAY NO. 30 (VARIABLE WIDTH 
RIGHT-OF-WAY): 
 
THENCE N 76”34’05” E, AT A DISTANCE OF 316.84 FEET PASSING THE SOUTHWEST CORNER OF 
SAID JOWERS TRACT, AND CONTINUING ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID JOWERS TRACT AND 
A NORTH LINE OF SAID STRUCTURED TRACT A TOTAL DISTANCE OF 857.54 FEET TO THE PLACE 
OF BEGINNING AND CONTAINING 7.955 ACRES (346,532 SQUARE FEET) OF LAND, MORE OR LESS. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

42



   

43



  

44



  

45



46



 

 

47



CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-53 
 

SPECIFIC USE PERMIT NO. S-288 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING PLANNED DEVELOPMENT 
DISTRICT 70 (PD-70) [ORDINANCE NO. 19-41] AND THE 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC) [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] 
OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS, 
AS PREVIOUSLY AMENDED, SO AS TO GRANT A SPECIFIC 
USE PERMIT (SUP) FOR ONE (1) RESTAURANT WITH 2,000 SF 
OR MORE WITH DRIVE-THROUGH OR DRIVE-IN ON A 8.684-
ACRE TRACT OF LAND IDENTIFIED AS TRACT 3-10 OF THE S. 
KING SURVEY, ABSTRACT NO. 131, CITY OF ROCKWALL, 
ROCKWALL COUNTY, TEXAS; AND MORE SPECIFICALLY 
DESCRIBED AND DESCRIBED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ AND DEPICTED 
IN EXHIBIT ‘B’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; PROVIDING FOR 
SPECIAL CONDITIONS; PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE 
NOT TO EXCEED THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS 
($2,000.00) FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City has received a request from Bowen Hendrix of DuWest Realty, LLC for the 
approval of a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or More with Drive-Through 
or Drive-In for the purpose of constructing one (1) restaurant on a 8.684-acre tract of land described 
as Tract 3-10 of the S. King Survey, Abstract No. 131, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, 
zoned Planned Development District 70 (PD-70) for limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, 
situated within the SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 OV) District, generally located north of the intersection 
of N. Goliad Street [SH-205] and E. Quail Run Road, and being more specifically described in Exhibit 
‘A’ and depicted in Exhibit ‘B’ of  this ordinance, which herein after shall be referred to as the Subject 
Property and incorporated by reference herein; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body of 
the City of Rockwall, in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of the 
City of Rockwall, have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held public 
hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally, and to all persons 
interested in and situated in the affected area and in the vicinity thereof, the governing body in the 
exercise of its legislative discretion has concluded that Planned Development District 70 (PD-70) 
[Ordinance No. 19-41] and the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the 
City of Rockwall should be amended as follows: 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Rockwall, Texas; 
 
SECTION 1. Planned Development District 70 (PD-70) [Ordinance No. 19-41] and the Unified 
Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, 
be and the same is hereby amended so as to grant a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant 
with 2,000 SF or More, with Drive-Through or Drive-In in accordance with Article 04, Permissible 
Uses, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] on the Subject Property; 
and, 

48



SECTION 2. That the Specific Use Permit (SUP) shall be subject to the requirements set forth in 
Subsection 04.04, General Retail (GR) District, and Subsection 06.07, SH-205 Overlay (SH-205 
OV) District, of Article 05, District Development Standards, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02] and to the requirements set forth in Planned Development District 
70 (PD-70) [Ordinance No. 19-41] -- as heretofore amended and may be amended in the future -
- and with the following conditions: 
 
2.1 OPERATIONAL CONDITIONS 
 
The following conditions pertain to the operation of a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or More with Drive-
Through or Drive-In on the Subject Property and conformance to these conditions is required for 
continued operation: 
 
1) The development of the Subject Property shall generally conform to the Concept Plan as 

depicted in Exhibit ‘ B’ of this ordinance. 
 

2) The applicant shall provide three tier screening on the north, south, and west sides of the 
concept plan.  
 

2.2 COMPLIANCE 
 
Approval of this ordinance in accordance with Subsection 02.02, Specific Use Permits (SUP) of 
Article 11, Development Applications and Review Procedures, of the Unified Development Code 
(UDC) will require the Subject Property to comply with the following: 
 
1) Upon obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy (CO), should the business owner operating under 

the guidelines of this ordinance fail to meet the minimum operational requirements set forth 
herein and outlined in the Unified Development Code (UDC), the City may (after proper notice) 
initiate proceedings to revoke the Specific Use Permit (SUP) in accordance with Subsection 
02.02(F), Revocation, of Article 11, Development Applications and Revision Procedures, of 
the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02]. 

 
SECTION 3.  That the official zoning map of the City be corrected to reflect the changes in zoning 
described herein. 
 
SECTION 4. That all ordinances of the City of Rockwall in conflict with the provisions of this 
ordinance be, and the same are hereby repealed to the extent of that conflict. 
 
SECTION 5. Any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this ordinance shall 
be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a penalty of fine not 
to exceed the sum of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) for each offence and each and 
every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense. 
 
SECTION 6. If any section or provision of this ordinance or the application of that section or 
provision to any person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance is for any reason judged invalid, 
the adjudication shall not affect any other section or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
any other section or provision to any other person, firm, corporation, situation or circumstance, and 
the City Council declares that it would have adopted the valid portions and applications of the 
ordinance without the invalid parts and to this end the provisions of this ordinance shall remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

SECTION 7. That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 

49



PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3rd DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022. 
 
 
     

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
 

ATTEST: 
 
 
    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 
 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 
 

 
1st Reading:  September 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

50



 

51



 

52



 CITY OF ROCKWALL 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 22-54 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS, AMENDING THE UNIFIED 
DEVELOPMENT CODE [ORDINANCE NO. 20-02] OF THE 
CITY OF ROCKWALL, AS HERETOFORE AMENDED, BY 
AMENDING ARTICLE 09, TREE PRESERVATION, AS 
DEPCITED IN EXHIBIT ‘A’ OF THIS ORDINANCE; 
PROVIDING FOR A PENALTY OF FINE NOT TO EXCEED 
THE SUM OF TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS ($2,000.00) 
FOR EACH OFFENSE; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY 
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; 
PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 
WHEREAS, an amendment to the City of Rockwall’s Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 
20-02] has been initiated by the City Council of the City of Rockwall to amend Article 09, Tree 
Preservation, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02]; and, 

 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Commission of the City of Rockwall and the governing body 
of the City of Rockwall in compliance with the laws of the State of Texas and the ordinances of 
the City of Rockwall have given the requisite notices by publication and otherwise, and have held 
public hearings and afforded a full and fair hearing to all property owners generally and to all 
persons interested in and situated in the city’s corporate boundaries, and the governing body in 
the exercise of its legislative discretion, has concluded that the Unified Development Code 
[Ordinance No. 20-02] should be amended as follows: 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
ROCKWALL, TEXAS: 
 
SECTION 1. That Article 09, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code [Ordinance 
No. 20-02] of the City of Rockwall, as heretofore amended, be and the same is hereby amended 
as specifically described in Exhibit ‘A’ of this ordinance; 
 
SECTION 2.   That any person, firm, or corporation violating any of the provisions of this 
ordinance shall be deemed guilty of a misdemeanor and upon conviction shall be punished by a 
penalty of fine not to exceed the sum of Two Thousand Dollars ($2,000.00) for each offense and 
each and every day such offense shall continue shall be deemed to constitute a separate offense; 

 
SECTION 3.   That if any section, paragraph, or provision of this ordinance or the application of 
that section, paragraph, or provision to any person, firm, corporation or situation is for any reason 
judged invalid, the adjudication shall not affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of this 
ordinance or the application of any other section, paragraph or provision to any other person, firm, 
corporation or situation, nor shall adjudication affect any other section, paragraph, or provision of 
the Unified Development Code [Ordinance No. 20-02], and the City Council declares that it would 
have adopted the valid portions and applications of the ordinance without the invalid parts and to 
this end the provisions for this ordinance are declared to be severable; 
 
SECTION 4.   That this ordinance shall take effect immediately from and after its passage. 
 
PASSED AND APPROVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ROCKWALL, TEXAS, 
THIS THE 3RD DAY OF OCTOBER, 2022. 

53



  
       

 Kevin Fowler, Mayor 
 
ATTEST: 

 
 

    
Kristy Teague, City Secretary 

 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 
 

    
Frank J. Garza, City Attorney 

 
 
 

1st Reading:  September 19, 2022 
 
2nd Reading: October 3, 2022 

54



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

See Next Page … 

55



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Ryan Miller, Director of Planning and Zoning

DATE: October 3, 2022

SUBJECT: P2022-050; FINAL PLAT FOR LOTS 1 & 2, BLOCK A, BOYS AND GIRLS
CLUB OF ROCKWALL ADDITION

Attachments
Case Memo
Location Map
Final Plat
Chapter 380 Agreement

Summary/Background Information
Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block
A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall Addition being a 5.812-acre tract of land identified as Tract
9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail
(GR) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, located at
the southwest corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and FM-1141, and take any
action necessary.

Action Needed
The City Council is being asked to approve, approve with conditions, or deny the proposed
Final Plat.

56



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 1 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CITY OF ROCKWALL 
CITY COUNCIL CASE MEMO  
 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT 

385 S. GOLIAD STREET • ROCKWALL, TX 75087 
PHONE: (972) 771-7745 • EMAIL: PLANNING@ROCKWALL.COM 

 

 

TO: Mayor and City Council  
 

DATE: October 3, 2022 
 

APPLICANT: Ryan Miller; City of Rockwall  
 

CASE NUMBER: P2022-050; Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall Addition 
 

 

SUMMARY 
 
Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of 
Rockwall Addition being a 5.812-acre tract of land identified as Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, Rockwall 
County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, located at 
the southwest corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and FM-1141, and take any action necessary. 
 
PLAT INFORMATION 
 
 In accordance with the Chapter 380 Economic Development Agreement executed by the City of Rockwall on March 8, 

2022, the City is requesting the approval of a Final Plat for a 5.812-acre parcel of land for the purpose of creating two (2) 
lots (i.e. Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club Addition) from a 5.812-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones 
Survey, Abstract No. 122).  Based on the requirements of the agreement one (1) of the lots (i.e. Lot 2, Block A) -- being a 
4.812-acre parcel of land -- will be swapped for a 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 
102) to facilitate the possible development of a new facility for the Boys and Girls Club of America.  The remaining lot (i.e. 
Lot 1, Block A) along with the 5.07-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102) will be retained 
by the City of Rockwall.   
 

 The subject property was annexed on May 19, 1986 by Ordinance No. 86-37 [i.e. Case No. A1986-005].  The remainder of 
the subject property was annexed on March 16, 1998 by Ordinance No. 98-10 [i.e. Case No. A1998-001].  At the time of 
annexation both portions of the subject property were zoned Agricultural (AG) District.  In 2007-2008, the City of Rockwall 
acquired the subject property -- which was a portion of a larger 6.702-acre tract of land (i.e. Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones 
Survey, Abstract No. 122) -- for the future right-of-way of John King Boulevard.  When John King Boulevard was constructed, 
the subject property was established in its current configuration.  The subject property has remained vacant since its 
annexation.  On February 7, 2022, the City Council approved a motion directing the City Manager to enter into a Chapter 
380 Economic Development Agreement with the owner of the tract of land located at the southeast corner of the intersection 
of Airport Road and John King Boulevard for the purpose of swapping a portion of the subject property for his 5.07-acre 
tract of land (i.e. Tract 2-06 of the D. Harr Survey, Abstract No. 102) to facilitate the possible development of a future facility 
for Boys and Girls Club of America.  This agreement was signed and executed by the City and Saro Partners, LLC on March 
8, 2022.  In accordance with this agreement, the City Council approved Ordinance No. 22-20 [i.e. Case No. Z2022-011] 
changing the zoning of the subject property from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Commercial (C) District on April 4, 2022.  

 
 The surveyor has completed the majority of the technical revisions requested by staff, and this Final Plat -- conforming to 

the requirements for plats as stipulated by the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances -- is 
recommended for conditional approval pending the completion of final technical modifications and submittal requirements. 
 

 Conditional approval of this Final Plat by the City Council shall constitute approval subject to the conditions stipulated in the 
Conditions of Approval section below. 

 
 With the exception of the items listed in the Conditions of Approval section of this case memo, this plat is in substantial 

compliance with the requirements of the Subdivision Ordinance in the Municipal Code of Ordinances. 
 

57



 

 

PLANNING AND ZONING DEPARTMENT PAGE 2 CITY OF ROCKWALL 

CONDITIONS OF APPROVAL 
 
If City Council chooses to approve of the Final Plat for the Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall Addition, staff 
would propose the following conditions of approval: 
 
(1) All technical comments from City Staff (i.e. Engineering, Planning and Fire Department) shall be addressed prior to submittal 

of civil engineering plans;  
 
(2) Any construction resulting from the approval of this Final Plat shall conform to the requirements set forth by the Unified 

Development Code (UDC), the International Building Code (IBC), the Rockwall Municipal Code of Ordinances, city adopted 
engineering and fire codes and with all other applicable regulatory requirements administered and/or enforced by the state 
and federal government. 

 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
 
On September 27, 2022, the Planning and Zoning Commission approved a motion to recommend approval of the Final Plat by 
a vote of 6-0, with Commissioner Welch absent.   
 

58



AG

C LILI

PD-5

SF-7

2F PD-71

PD-85

GR

PD-93

AG

1141

SHADY
LANE DR

PH
ELP

S LA
KE DR

MADRID WAY

HARKER CIR

LADERA WAY

N
O

R
M

AN
 T

R
L

C
O

R
D

O
BA

LN

CRESCENT COVE DR

CAR
U

TH
LN

WHITE WATER LN

BELLA
D

R

ENCANTO TRL

WATERS EDGE DR

BAY LINE DR

ER
IE D

R

H
ID

D
EN

 L
AK

ES
 W

AY

HAM
PTON

BAY DR

PA
LA

SA
D

ES
 C

T

R
AP

ID
S 

C
T

OPEN BAY CT

SEN
DERA

LN
M

O
N

TE
G

O
 C

T

M

ARATHON CT

BLUE BROOK DR

OLYMPIC DR

RIO
VISTA

LN

HIGHBLUFF LN

FM
11

41
N

 JO
H

N
 K

IN
G

 B
LVD

")66

Planning & Zoning Department
385 S. Goliad Street
Rockwall, Texas 75032
(P): (972) 771-7745
(W): www.rockwall.com

City of Rockwall The City of Rockwall GIS maps are continually under development
and therefore subject to change without notice. While we endeavor

to provide timely and accurate information, we make no
guarantees. The City of Rockwall makes no warranty, express

or implied, including warranties of merchantability and fitness for a
particular purpose. Use of the information is the sole responsibility of

the user. I

0 360 720 1,080 1,440180
Feet

Case Location Map =

P2022-050: Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall
Addition

59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

MEMORANDUM 
  
 
TO:  Mayor and Council Members 
 
FROM: Hotel Occupancy Tax Sub-committee Members  

Mary Smith, city Manager 
 
DATE:  September 28, 2022 
 
SUBJECT: Supplemental Request for HOT Funding  
  
The Subcommittee met to discuss a supplemental request for HOT funding for a 
conference being held in Rockwall in October 2022.  Members Dana Macalik, Anna 
Campbell, and Bennie Daniels have prepared the following recommendation for funding 
pending Council’s approval. 
 
Divine Peace Lutheran Church is hosting a tri-state pastor’s conference which will be held 
in Rockwall October 24 - 26.  There are 45 rooms booked by conference attendees at the 
Hilton.  The conference meetings will be held at the Church and all meals and activities are 
focused on downtown businesses.  The committee is recommending $5,500 for this 
request. 
 

 
Prior to Council action on the above, the Hotel Occupancy Tax budget is as follows: 

 
   Fund Balance carried forward  $1,188,249 
       Budgeted Revenues         975,000 
       Previously Allocated Funding  (1,040,050) 
     Projected Fund Balance  $1,123,199 
 

The subcommittee can answer any questions regarding their recommendation. Council is asked 
to consider approval of the funding amount and authorize the City Manager to execute a 
contract for this conference. 

85



86



Advertising/Tourism Requested funding amount$ S, ho 
Conducting solicitation or promotional programs that encourage tourists 
and delegates to come to the City of Rockwall. 

D Arts Requested funding amount $ 
Providing encouragement, promotion, improvement and application of 
the arts as it relates to the presentation, performance execution or 
exhibition of the major art forms in the City of Rockwall. 

D Historical Requested funding amount$ 
Providing historical restoration, preservation, programs and 
encouragement to visit preserved historic sites or museums located in the 
City of Rockwall. 

2. Describe the program or event for the upcoming fiscal year (Oct. 1 2022 - Sept. 30,
2023) that you are requesting Hotel Tax funding. What is your event and why are
you having it?
Each October, the pastors from the South Central District (Texas, Oklahoma,
Arkansas & Louisiana) of the Wisconsin Evangelical Lutheran Synod gather for
worship, fellowship, church business and continuing education. This year. and
prayerfully in subsequent years, the conference will be held at Divine Peace Church
Rockwall to make use of and support the many amenities offered by our community.

3. How does the event/program meet the definition of the categories listed in Item No.
1 above (promotion of tourism and the hotel industry in the City of Rockwall)?
This event meets the definition of category II Advertising/Tourism" as listed in Item
No. 1 above as guests throughout Texas and others states will be staying in Rockwall
for two, and in some cases three days, engaging in tourist activities related to food,
retail, hotel, etc.

4. Is the event/ program that the organization is requesting Hotel Tax funds held in/ on
City-owned property?
No Name location: Divine Peace Church Rockwall

5. Will your organization provide special event insurance coverage for the
event/ program if held on City property?
No Name of Insurance Company: N/ A

6. Provide 3 years attendance history for the above listed programs, activities, exhibits
or event described in Item No. 2 above.

Event 
Duration Audience # of Attendees in 

Event Year (in Days) Size hotel rooms 
2021 South Central District Fall 

Pastors' Conference 2021 2 50 45 
2020 South Central District Fall 

Pastors' Conference 2020 2 50 
Zoom Covid 

2019 South Central District Fall 
Pastors' Conference 2019 2 45  45 

87



7. What specific market will you target with the event/program's marketing plan?
Attach up to 3 examples and evidence of marketing area and readership (Label
ExhibitC).

8. The City of Rockwall must require segregated accounting of its Hotel funds.
Organizations must maintain and account for revenue provided from the tax
authorized by section 351.101(a) within one of the two options listed below.
a) Separate checking account without combining with any other revenues or

maintained in any other bank account or
b) Maintain a line item accounting, whereby the Hotel revenues may not be

combined with any other revenues or expenditures. The funds may be
maintained in the same bank account, provided they are reported as a
separate line item in the organization's budget. Interest earned on the Hotel
revenues must be used to support the event/program as well.

Will the organization be able to segregate the accounting process in either a) or b) 
above? Yes 

9. Provide all of the following documentation with this application and label each as
outlined below.

Exhibit A 
Exhibit B 

ExhibitC 
ExhibitD 

Exhibit E 
Exhibit F 

Proposed budget for each event/ program using attached form 
Letter of determination certifying federal tax exempt 501(c)(3) 
status 
Examples and evidence of marketing area and readership (limit 3) 
List members of the governing body including name, position, 
mailing address and phone number 
W-9 Form htt]2i://www.irs.gov/pub/irs-pdf/fw9.pdf?

Form 1295 htrps: 1,vww.ethics.state.t.x.us whatsnew elf info_forml295.htm

We certifij, to the best of our abilihJ, that the information in this application, induding all 
exhibits and supporting documentation is true and correct to the best of our knowledge. It is 
understood and agreed that any funds awarded as a/ result of this application will be used for 
the purpose set for herein and the program guidelines. 

President/Board Chairman: 

Date       9/26/2022 Print Name G, CttrrvA"'-- rz. L��f-fl(r,{l,..,-,-r

Signature cfa
---

4,. /L_.______ 

Event/Program Director: 

Date Print Name 

Signature 

Both signatures are required for the application to be complete. 

88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: October 3, 2022

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF TWO NEW FIRE APPARATUS

Attachments

Summary/Background Information
The purchase of a new Aerial Ladder Truck and Brush Truck for the Fire Department, including
the associated loose equipment, were approved to be funded from General Fund Reserves in
the FY2023 budget. 

This new Ladder Truck will replace 2009 model Ladder 1 truck.  Build time on the new 2024
model Ladder Truck is concurrent and will take approximately 28 months from order date. 
 Acceptance by and delivery to the Fire Department are estimated to be late December 2024. 
Cost is $1,701,000.  The new Brush Truck will replace a 2004 model truck of the same design
and will take approximately 18 months to build.  Should receive the new Brush Truck on or
about April 2024. Cost of the new Brush Truck is $298,000.  We will pay for these new trucks
on or about the delivery and acceptance date in mid FY2024 and early FY2025.

The two 2024 model apparatuses have been competitively bid and are available for purchase
from Siddons-Martin/Pierce and Cavender Grande Ford through the Houston-Galveston Area
Council of Governments (H-GAC) Cooperative Purchasing Program contract FS12-19 (FIRE)
and FS12-19A (FIRE).  The City, as a member and participant in this cooperative program, has
met all formal bidding requirements pertaining to the purchase of these two apparatus. 

Action Needed
For Council consideration is the bid award of $1701,000 for the new Ladder Truck to Siddons-
Martin/Pierce and $298,000 for the new Brush Truck to Cavender Grande Ford (a subcontractor
of Siddons-Martin Pierce) as well as pre authorization to buy the loose equipment from various
vendors. Council is also asked to authorize the City Manager to execute purchase orders for
the two new apparatus and the associated equipment.

101



MEMORANDUM
TO: Mary Smith, City Manager

CC: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Lea Ann Ewing, Purchasing Agent

DATE: October 3, 2022

SUBJECT: PURCHASE OF YEAR MODEL 2023-2024 VEHICLES

Attachments

Summary/Background Information

102

[please see next page]



Delivery of new vehicles beginning in FY 2020 up to today has been a challenge for the
dealerships.  The manufacturers have limited production based on chip availability.  We have
recently received all Patrol PPV SUVs ordered in September 2021 and January 2022.  We
currently have 11 YM2022 work/utility trucks on order and these trucks have been pushed to the
YM2023 manufacturing line delivered sometime next Summer. A few weeks ago, the
government fleet rep (cooperative purchasing contract with the Buy Board) forwarded to me an
order status update and future order memorandum from Chevrolet and Ford.  Update of vehicle
orders as YM2023 and 2024, the manufacturers will not guarantee government contract pricing
for YM2023 vehicles; and YM2024 pricing is not available at this time.  Ford has stopped taking
YM2023 truck orders as of this month.   Inflation has played a huge part in the rising cost of
YM2023 vehicle cost.  Staff increased the normal budget for these trucks by 10% in the FY 2023
budget and that was not enough.  Prices are coming in higher than anticipated.  An additional
$30,500 is requested from General Fund Reserves to pay for these new vehicles.

As in the past, City vehicles will be ordered using the Texas Association of School Boards’ Buy
Board purchasing cooperative contract for vehicles. As a member and participant in this
cooperative, the City has met all formal bidding requirements pertaining to the purchase of each
vehicle. Any remaining budget dollars may be used to fit the vehicle with after-market equipment
such as emergency lighting, wiring and install of computer hardware, radio, decals and safety
equipment. 

FY 2023 Approved Vehicles

Department Vehicle  Budget Cost  Funding Vendor
Internal Ops Utility Trucks (2 ea.)          86,500 102,510  Rockdale/Caldwell
Fire Operations Asst. Chief Vehicle          60,000             49,025  Rockdale
Fire Marshal Inspector Truck (2 ea.)       110,650             97,250  Rockdale
Police Patrol Vehicle (8 ea.)       343,867          377,730  Rockdale/Caldwell
Police Community Serv Vehicle (2 ea. )          75,000             85,795  Rockdale/Caldwell
Parks Crew truck          60,000             55,780  Caldwell
Engineering Inspector Truck (2 ea.)          70,000             75,640  Caldwell
Streets Manager Vehicle          48,500             40,335  Caldwell

Total   $   854,517  $      884,065 GF Reserves  

      

Water Utility Trucks (2 ea.)       135,000          114,495  Caldwell
Wastewater Utility Truck          60,000             55,780  Caldwell

Total   $   195,000  $      170,275 W & S Fund  

Action Needed
Council is asked to consider approving the new vehicle orders as listed above to Caldwell
Country Chevrolet $586,400 and Rockdale Country Ford $467,940 and authorize the City
Manager to execute purchase orders for these new vehicles.

103



104



105



106



107



108



109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



126



127



128



129



130



131



132



133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

August 2022 Monthly  
Report  

 

150



 
All Calls By NFIRS Call Type Incident Count
100 Fire, other 1
111 Building fire 4
131 Passenger vehicle fire (cars, pickups, SUV's) 1
132 Road freight or transport vehicle fire (Commercial Vehicles) 1
142 Brush or brush-and-grass mixture fire 1
143 Grass fire 2
160 Special outside fire, other 3
311 Medical assist, assist EMS crew 163
322 Motor vehicle accident with injuries 16
324 Motor vehicle accident with no injuries. 25
331 Lock-in (if lock out , use 511 ) 1
350 Extrication, rescue, other 1
353 Removal of victim(s) from stalled elevator 3
357 Extrication of victim(s) from machinery 1
365 Watercraft rescue 1
412 Gas leak (natural gas or LPG) 17
424 Carbon monoxide incident 1
440 Electrical  wiring/equipment problem, other 4
442 Overheated motor 1
444 Power line down 3
445 Arcing, shorted electrical equipment 4
510 Person in distress, other 2
511 Lock-out 1
512 Ring or jewelry removal 1
522 Water or steam leak 1
550 Public service assistance, other 1
550 Smoke Detector Battery Change/Install 7
551 Assist police or other governmental agency 2
553 Public service 2
554 Assist invalid 1
611 Dispatched & canceled en route 24
621 Wrong location 1
622 No incident found on arrival at dispatch address 14
651 Smoke scare, odor of smoke 1
652 Steam, vapor, fog or dust thought to be smoke 1
653 Smoke from barbecue, tar kettle 1
710 Malicious, mischievous false call, other 2
730 System malfunction, other 2
731 Sprinkler activation due to malfunction 2
732 Extinguishing system malfunction (activation) 1
733 Smoke detector activation due to malfunction 7
735 Alarm system sounded due to malfunction 9
736 CO detector activation due to malfunction 2
740 Unintentional transmission of alarm, other 2
741 Sprinkler activation, no fire - unintentional 1
743 Smoke detector activation, no fire - unintentional 7
745 Alarm system activation, no fire - unintentional 7
746 Carbon monoxide detector activation, no CO 1
Grand Total 357

151



August 2022 Dispatch to Arrival Analysis 
 

 

District
Total Number of 

Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of Calls 
in 5.5 mins or 

Less

Average FD 
Response Time 

Minutes

% in 5.5 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 94 33% 77 0:04:15 82% 90%
District 2 83 29% 62 0:04:29 75% 90%
District 3 26 9% 18 0:05:05 69% 90%
District 4 50 17% 41 0:04:28 82% 90%
District 5 16 6% 4 0:06:28 25% 90%
District 6 3 1% 1 0:06:35 33% 90%
District 7 11 4% 3 0:06:36 27% 90%
District 8 3 1% 1 0:05:59 33% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 286 100% 207 0:04:41 72% 90%

152



August 2022 Travel Times by District 

 

District
Total 

Number of 
Calls

Percent of 
Runs per 
District

Number of 
Calls in 4 or 

Less

Average Travel 
Time Minutes

% in 4 min 
or less Goal of 90%

District 1 94 33% 71 0:03:13 76% 90%
District 2 83 29% 55 0:03:39 66% 90%
District 3 26 9% 16 0:04:06 62% 90%
District 4 50 17% 36 0:03:31 72% 90%
District 5 16 6% 3 0:05:22 19% 90%
District 6 3 1% 1 0:06:01 33% 90%
District 7 11 4% 3 0:05:34 27% 90%
District 8 3 1% 0 0:04:57 0% 90%
District 9 0 0% 0 0:00:00 No Calls 90%

Department 286 100% 185 0:03:44 65% 90%

153



Current Month Last Month Same Month Last Year Year To Date Last Year To Date
Total Property Loss: $7,000.00 $100,000.00 $1,000.00 $968,720.00 $238,350.00

Total Content Loss: $0.00 $25,000.00 $12,000.00 $870,000.00 $96,600.00

Total Property Pre-Incident Value: $69,750.00 $429,450.00 $0.00 $60,984,610.00 $27,606,129.00

Total Contents Pre-Incident Value $6,975.00 $50,000.00 $0.00 $21,796,975.00 $11,107,699.60

Total Losses: $7,000.00 $125,000.00 $13,000.00 $1,838,720.00 $7,000.00

Total Value: $76,725.00 $479,450.00 $.00 $82,781,585.00 $38,713,828.60

Page: 1 of 1

Print Date/Time:
Login ID:

Total Dollar Losses
August 2022

09/08/2022 14:39
rck\dgang

Rockwall Fire Department
ORI Number: TX504    

AllAreas:
AllIncident Type:AllLayer:

Station: All

154



11

7
6

5
3

4

0

5

10

15

March-22 April-22 May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22

Inspector Call Outs

87
100 94

127

82
103

15 10 12 10 11 14

0

50

100

150

March-22 April-22 May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22

Plan Reviews & Permits
Plan Reviews Permits

5

2

0 0

1

2

0

2

4

6

March-22 April-22 May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22

Fire Investigations

117 105 97
129

166

207

0

50

100

150

200

250

March-22 April-22 May-22 June-22 July-22 August-22

Inspections

Fire Prevention, Education, 
& Investigations Division
Monthly Report
August 2022

155



47%

Monthly Report

First Friday Luncheon
 60 Attendees

0 10,000 20,000 30,000

Program Revenue 

HMCC/Pavilions 

The Center 

Upcoming:

JUN:
JUL:
AUG:

 

Huge thanks to all of our
great lifeguards 

August 2022

% of Resident Accounts 
as of August 2022 

Fall Fishing Derby

Jazz Date by the Lake

Halloween Extravaganza

REVENUE   NUMBERS

156



PARKS   PROJECT   UPDATE - AUGUST 2022

Kidzone Sod InstallationAngel League Logo at Yellow
Jacket Park 

Leon Tuttle Athletic Complex
Parking Lot Painting

Fibar installation at all
playgounds

Other Projects

Lofland Park memorial bench install New Park Building Plant and
Equipment Storage Area

157



Rockwall Police Department
Monthly Activity Report

ACTIVITY CURRENT MONTH PREVIOUS MONTH YTD YTD YTD %

AUGUST JULY 2022 2021 CHANGE

Homicide / Manslaughter 0 0 0 0 0.00%

Sexual Assault 0 3 10 12 -16.67%

Robbery 2 0 9 3 200.00%

Aggravated Assault 4 2 22 22 0.00%

Burglary 2 3 25 25 0.00%

Larceny 48 58 459 406 13.05%

Motor Vehicle Theft 5 5 36 36 0.00%

TOTAL PART I 61 71 561 504 11.31%

TOTAL PART II 117 112 1030 988 4.25%

TOTAL OFFENSES 178 183 1591 1492 6.64%

FAMILY VIOLENCE 8 6 62 89 -30.34%

D.W.I. 14 17 124 140 -11.43%

FELONY 22 20 195 182 7.14%

MISDEMEANOR 56 55 445 377 18.04%

WARRANT ARREST 8 8 58 64 -9.38%

JUVENILE 4 2 59 21 180.95%

TOTAL ARRESTS 90 85 757 644 17.55%

CALLS FOR SERVICE 1948 2144 15830 16630 -4.81%

INJURY 3 4 31 36 -13.89%

NON-INJURY 72 83 585 565 3.54%

FATALITY 0 1 2 0 200.00%

TOTAL 75 88 618 601 2.83%

RESIDENT ALARMS 39 49 357 348 2.59%

BUSINESS ALARMS 182 155 1261 1105 14.12%

TOTAL FALSE ALARMS 221 204 1618 1453 11.36%

Estimated Lost Hours 145.86 134.64 1067.88 958.98 11.36%

Estimated Cost $3,469.70 $3,202.80 $25,402.60 $22,812.10 11.36%

Number of Cases

Arrests

Arrest Warrants

Search Warrants

Cocaine

Methamphetamine

Dangerous Drugs / 

Fentanyl

THC Oil 1 grams

32 grams

ACCIDENTS

FALSE ALARMS

ROCKWALL NARCOTICS UNIT

1

0

2

Seized

1

10000 grams

11000 pills

August-2022

PART 1 OFFENSES

ARRESTS

DISPATCH

ADDITIONAL STATISTICS

158



Rockwall Police Department
Dispatch and Response Times

Average Response Time

Priority 1 Number of Calls 171

Call to Dispatch 0:00:47

Call to Arrival 0:05:33

     % over 7 minutes 27%

Average Response Time

Priority 2 Number of Calls 670

Call to Dispatch 0:02:44

Call to Arrival 0:10:03

     % over 7 minutes 23%

Average Response Time

Priority 3 Number of Calls 61

Call to Dispatch 0:02:02  

Call to Arrival 0:08:23

     % over 7 minutes 46%

Average dispatch response time goals are as follows:

Priority 1: 1 Minute

Priority 2: 1 Minute, 30 Seconds

Priority 3: 3 Minutes

August 2022

Police Department

159



General Fund TIF
Sales Tax Sales Tax

Sep-19 1,478,622      31,577         
Oct-19 1,565,868      24,818         
Nov-19 1,730,541      21,787         
Dec-19 1,547,746      23,781         
Jan-20 1,365,040      26,330         
Feb-20 2,273,520      27,472         
Mar-20 1,458,193      19,955         
Apr-20 1,292,639      15,829         

May-20 1,605,986      17,538         
Jun-20 1,345,598      5,881            
Jul-20 1,376,026      13,529         

Aug-20 1,979,539      17,706         
Sep-20 1,573,352      12,179         
Oct-20 1,558,570      14,888         
Nov-20 1,989,955      15,299         
Dec-20 1,634,280      14,994         
Jan-21 1,718,364      13,341         
Feb-21 2,244,778      14,935         
Mar-21 1,521,031      12,738         
Apr-21 1,952,165      10,954         

May-21 2,651,412      18,252         
Jun-21 2,080,645      27,773         
Jul-21 1,877,982      22,940         

Aug-21 1,930,521      24,860         
Sep-21 1,882,276      27,803         
Oct-21 1,860,016      19,744         
Nov-21 2,317,862      21,385         
Dec-21 1,963,345      23,464         
Jan-22 2,040,002      20,495         
Feb-22 2,664,185      23,976         
Mar-22 1,786,902      21,605         
Apr-22 1,633,850      17,548         

May-22 2,559,349      26,254         
Jun-22 2,050,066      25,127         
Jul-22 2,135,457      29,738         

Aug-22 2,381,510      34,190         

Notes:

75% of TIF sales tax (city share) is pledged to the TIF

75% of total sales tax collected is deposited to the General Fund each month

Comptroller tracks sales tax generated in the TIF and reports it monthly 

Sales Tax Collections - Rolling 36 Months

 -

 500,000

 1,000,000

 1,500,000

 2,000,000

 2,500,000

 3,000,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

General Fund Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

 5,000

 15,000

 25,000

 35,000

 45,000

OCT NOV DEC JAN FEB MAR APR MAY JUN JUL AUG SEP

TIF Sales Tax

2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22

160



Total Gallons Daily Average Maximum Day
Jun-20 455,022,410            15,167,411            20,100,668            
Jul-20 511,667,880            16,505,415            20,073,454            

Aug-20 590,693,550            19,054,630            22,031,522            
Sep-20 363,112,688            12,103,756            14,870,959            
Oct-20 397,801,934            12,832,320            15,751,199            
Nov-20 295,091,494            9,836,383              11,452,738            
Dec-20 179,571,968            7,371,629              8,653,526               
Jan-21 157,800,928            6,718,182              7,179,987               
Feb-21 199,821,312            8,288,901              17,044,360            
Mar-21 230,130,315            7,423,560              9,739,996               
Apr-21 289,545,756            9,651,525              12,683,656            

May-21 247,421,005            7,981,324              10,400,411            
Jun-21 342,904,230            11,430,141            16,988,604            
Jul-21 446,687,809            14,409,284            17,918,524            

Aug-21 486,443,590            15,691,730            18,928,160            
Sep-21 377,898,464            17,173,544            19,016,086            
Oct-21 293,280,384            11,880,576            15,338,545            
Nov-21 280,398,508            9,346,618              12,584,820            
Dec-21 262,730,021            8,475,163              10,313,293            
Jan-22 245,557,172            7,921,199              10,742,941            
Feb-22 211,955,941            7,569,855              10,394,759            
Mar-22 256,035,618            8,529,214              10,544,988            
Apr-22 281,707,217            9,390,241              11,718,730            

May-22 356,050,664            11,485,506            15,634,756            
Jun-22 496,374,560            16,545,820            21,414,344            
Jul-22 679,705,160            21,925,974            24,474,168            

Aug-22 534,145,350            17,230,494            23,206,750            

Source: SCADA Monthly Reports generated at the Water Pump Stations

Monthly Water Consumption - Rolling 27 Months

 100,000,000
 200,000,000
 300,000,000
 400,000,000
 500,000,000
 600,000,000

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
n-

22

Au
g-

22

Total Gallons per Month

Total Gallons

 2,000,000
 7,000,000

 12,000,000
 17,000,000
 22,000,000
 27,000,000

Ju
n-

20

Au
g-

20

O
ct

-2
0

De
c-

20

Fe
b-

21

Ap
r-

21

Ju
n-

21

Au
g-

21

O
ct

-2
1

De
c-

21

Fe
b-

22

Ap
r-

22

Ju
n-

22

Au
g-

22

Average and Max Day

Daily Average Maximum Day

161


	10/03/22 CC Mtg
	 Consider approval of the minutes from the September 19, 2022 regular city council meeting, and take any action necessary.
	 09/19/22 CC Mtg Mins

	 Z2022-039 - Consider a request by Brian Cramer of Corson Cramer Development on behalf of Scott Asbury of Rockwall Highgate LTD for the approval of an ordinance for a Zoning Change from an Agricultural (AG) District to a Planned Development District for Single Family 10 (SF-10) District and Commercial (C) District land uses on a 264.510-acre tract of land identified as Tracts 17-13 [50.0-acres], 17-14 [26.452-acres], 17-15 [134.33-acres], 17-16 [43.6-acres], & 40-8 [8.79-acres] of the W. W. Ford Survey, Abstract No. 80, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Agricultural (AG) District, located on the east side of SH-205 (S. Goliad Street) south of the intersection of SH-205 and FM-549, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-041 - Consider a request by Renee Ward, PE of Weir & Associates, Inc. on behalf of Conor Keilty, AIA of Structured REA-Rockwall Land, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Golf Driving Range on an 7.955-acre tract of land being portions of a larger 18.131-acre tract of land and a 12.868-acre tract of land identified as Tract 22 & 22-2 of the R. Irvine Survey, Abstract No. 120, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned Commercial (C) District, situated within the IH-30 Overlay (IH-30 OV) District, generally located near the terminus of Fit Sport Life Boulevard, and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-042 - Consider a request by Bowen Hendrix of DuWest Realty, LLC for the approval of an ordinance for a Specific Use Permit (SUP) for a Restaurant with 2,000 SF or more with a Drive-Through or Drive-In on an 8.684-acre portion of a larger 36.428-acre tract of land identified as Tract 3 of the S. King Survey, Abstract No. 131, City of Rockwall, Rockwall County, Texas, being zoned Planned Development District 70 (PD-70) for limited General Retail (GR) District land uses, situated within the North SH-205 Overlay (N. SH-205 OV) District, generally located at the northeast corner of the intersection of E. Quail Run Road and N. Goliad Street [SH-205], and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 Z2022-043 - Consider approval of an ordinance for a Text Amendment to Article 09, Tree Preservation, of the Unified Development Code (UDC) [Ordinance No. 20-02], and take any action necessary (2nd Reading).
	 Ordinance 2nd Reading

	 P2022-050 - Consider a request by the City of Rockwall for the approval of a Final Plat for Lots 1 & 2, Block A, Boys and Girls Club of Rockwall Addition being a 5.812-acre tract of land identified as Tract 9 of the M. B. Jones Survey, Abstract No. 122, Rockwall County, Texas, zoned General Retail (GR) District, situated within the SH-205 By-Pass Overlay (SH-205 BY OV) District, located at the southwest corner of the intersection of John King Boulevard and FM-1141, and take any action necessary.
	 Case Memo
	 Location Map
	 Final Plat
	 Chapter 380 Agreement

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute contracts with Custard Construction Services for facility improvements at City Hall in the amount of $77,232.47 and at the Municipal Service Center in the amount of $399,490.56, to be funded out of the Internal Operations Department Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Custard Construction

	 Consider approval of a recommendation from the Hotel Occupancy Tax (HOT) Subcommittee regarding funding for the 2022 Pastor's Conference in the amount of $5,500, including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated funding arrangements, and take any action necessary.
	 Memo_Pastors Conference Funding
	 Report

	 Consider approval of a resolution denying Oncor Electric Delivery Company LLC's application to change rates within the City of Rockwall; approving cooperation with the Steering Committee of Cities Served by Oncor to negotiate with Oncor on the City's behalf, and take any action necessary.
	 Oncor Denial Resolution

	 Consider awarding a bid to Siddons-Martin Pierce for a new (Fire Department) Aerial Ladder Truck in the amount of $1,701,000 and a new Brush Truck to Cavender Grande Ford in the amount of $298,000, to be funded by General Fund Reserves, including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated purchase order(s) for the trucks and related, loose equipment, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider awarding bids to Caldwell Country Chevrolet and Rockdale Country Ford for the purchase of model year 2023-24 vehicles for a total amount of $1,054,340, including authorizing the City Manager to execute associated purchase orders, and take any action necessary.
	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an Interlocal Cooperative Agreement between the City of Rockwall and STAR Transit for transportation services for fiscal year 2023 in the amount of $114,400 to be funded by the Administration Department Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 STAR Contract for FY 23

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute an agreement with Meals on Wheels Senior Services for certain nutritional and senior service programs for fiscal year 2023 in the amount of $45,000 to be funded from the Administration Department Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 Meals on Wheels Contract for 2023

	 Consider authorizing the City Manager to execute a grant agreement with the Texas Department of Transportation Aviation Division for participation in the Routine Airport Maintenance Program (RAMP) at the Ralph M. Hall / Rockwall Municipal Airport, with matching funds for the grant to be provided by the Airport Operating Budget, and take any action necessary.
	 RAMP Grant Agreement for 2023

	 Building Inspections Department Monthly Report - August 2022
	 BI MONTHLY REPORT

	 Fire Department Monthly Report - August 2022
	 Rockwall Fire Department August 2022 Monthly Report

	 Parks & Recreation Department Monthly Report - August 2022
	 Police Department Monthly Report - August 2022
	 Police Department Monthly Report - August 2022

	 Sales Tax Historical Comparison
	 Report

	 Water Consumption Historical Statistics
	 Report




